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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
SR

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Karce International Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”),
together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”), | present herewith
to the shareholders of the Group the annual report and
audited consolidated results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2011.

RESULTS OF THE YEAR

2011 had been a year of consolidation for the Group, and results
of its efforts were reflected in the segment profit of its conductive
silicon rubber keypads trading business and ongoing talks
with original vendor for a buy-back of the discontinued LCoS
television operations.

During the year under review, the Group continued to exercise
stringent cost control and expand the scope of trading of the
associated products of conductive silicon rubber keypads. For
the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group’s conductive
silicon rubber keypads trading business reported a segment
profit of HK$836,000 (2010: HK$1,273,000). However, weak
market demand due to the trend for touchscreen keyboards
had caused the revenue of this segment to drop from
HK$26,524,000 of 2010 to HK$5,025,000.

With respect to the LCoS television business, the Group has
been actively looking for potential buyers, including the original
vendors, to acquire the business. In January 2011, the Group
entered into a formal agreement with an independent third party
(“Purchaser”) for the disposal of the LCoS television operations,
with a non-refundable deposit of HK$50 million paid to the
Group. However, the agreement was cancelled after certain
conditions under the agreement had not been fulfilled by the
long stop date (i.e. 30 June 2011). Pursuant to the cancellation
agreement, the Group was able to retain HK$15 million of
the deposit, and returned the remaining HK$35 million to the
Purchaser. During the year under review, the Group continued
to hold talks with the original vendors on a possible buy-back of
the television operations.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
*EHE

The cancellation of the formal agreement had resulted in a loss
of HK$35 million from the LCoS television operations for the
year under review, as compared to a profit of HK$50 million
recognised (as the reversal of impairment loss recognised in
respect of the intangible asset) in 2010. Taking into account this
factor, together with a significant decline in the revenue of the
conductive silicon rubber keypads trading business, the Group
reported for the 2011 financial year a loss attributable to owners
of the Company of HK$75.4 million (2010: profit of HK$24.4
million). Basic loss per share from continuing and discontinued
operations for the year under review was approximately 10.74
HK cents (2010: earnings per share of 3.48 HK cents).

During the year, the Group took advantage of the stock market
volatility and invested in certain blue-chip stocks at relatively
lower prices. The Group aims to hold the equity investments for
long term purposes.

In December 2011, the Group terminated the acquisition of a
chromium project in the Republic of Madagascar. The Group
noted from the latest information on the subject mines that there
was not enough evidence showing the existence of a sizable
chromium resources in the mines. Moreover, the progress of
geotechnical investigation on the subject mines procured by the
vendor had been slow and unorganised, and much investigation
and drilling was needed to be done before the competent
person’s report and valuation report could be compiled
according to the requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”). After taking into account the above factors, the
Group decided to terminate the acquisition agreements with
the vendors, which is in the interest of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2011.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
*EHE

FUTURE PLANS AND PROSPECTS

In 2012, the global economy will continue to be under the
shadow of a stagnant US economic outlook and yet-to-be-
solved European debt crisis. Against such a backdrop, the
Group intends to achieve further business rationalisation and
diversification.

Disposal of the discontinued LCoS television business remains
high on the agenda of the Group’s 2012 tasks. The Group will
continue to negotiate with the original vendors to buy back the
television operations.

For the conductive silicon rubber keypads trading business, the
operating environment will remain difficult. Rising demand for
touchscreen devices will further shrink the conductive silicon
rubber keypads industry pie. To sustain revenue of its conductive
silicon rubber keypads trading business, the Group will keep on
identifying suitable products to expand its trading portfolio.

Apart from consolidating its existing operations, the Group has
been actively identifying opportunities for business diversification
to enlarge its earning base. The Group aims at seeking to invest
in businesses with high growth potential and good returns.
The Group’s management, who have extensive investment
experience, will take a prudent approach in identifying and
investing in projects that will be in the interest of the Company
and shareholders as a whole.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to the management and all the employees of the Group
for their dedication. | would also like to thank our shareholders,
suppliers, bankers and customers for their continuous support.

Sun Ying Chung
Chairman

Hong Kong
28 March 2012
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

L AEEYSE S Pakin

BUSINESS AND OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Conductive silicon rubber keypads trading continued to be the
Group’s core business. For the year ended 31 December 2011,
the Group exercised stringent cost control in order to reduce
operating expenses and maintain its competitiveness. In an
attempt to diversify its product portfolio and enhance its earning
base, the Group expanded the scope of trading to include
products related to conductive silicon rubber keypads during the
period under review.

With respect to the discontinued LCoS television operation,
the agreement for the disposal of this business was cancelled
and an impairment loss of HK$50,000,000 was recognised
in respect of intangible asset during the year under review.
Simultaneously, a gain of HK$15,000,000 on the forfeited
deposit for the disposal of LCoS television business was
recognised.

As a result, the Group reported a loss attributable to owners
of the Company of approximately HK$75,423,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2011, as opposed to a profit of
approximately HK$24,429,000 for 2010. Basic loss per share
from continuing and discontinued operations for the year under
review was approximately 10.74 HK cents (2010: basic earnings
per share of 3.48 HK cents).

SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS

Conductive Silicon Rubber Keypads

The market environment of conductive silicon rubber keypads
continued to be extremely severe during the year under
review. Immense popularity of smartphones and touch-screen
computers undermined the sales volume of conductive silicon
rubber keypads. Selling prices of conductive silicon rubber
keypads had been declining amid weak demand for traditional
electronic devices with keypads. The trend inevitably had
adverse effects on the revenue of the Group’s conductive silicon
rubber keypad trading business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

L AEEYSE S Pakin

On the other hand, the production costs of this segment
remained high as a result of the rise in wages and raw material
costs. Furthermore, the Company also recognised cost of
moulds amounting HK$1,900,000 as cost of inventories in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2011.

The Group’s conductive silicon rubber keypads trading
business for the year under review reported a segment profit of
HK$836,000 (2010: HK$1,273,000).

LCoS Television

The Group and an independent third party entered into a
formal agreement in January 2011 for the disposal of its LCoS
television business. The consideration for the disposal amounted
to HK$637,500,000, with HK$50,000,000 as a non-refundable
deposit (“Deposit”) and part payment of the consideration. The
Deposit had been paid to the Company upon the signing of
the formal agreement. Based on the amount of the Deposit,
an impairment loss recognised in respect of intangible asset of
HK$50,000,000 was reversed, which was recognised as profit
from discontinued (LCoS television) operations for the year
ended 31 December 2010.

However, the agreement was cancelled after certain conditions
thereunder had not been fulfilled by the long stop date (i.e. 30
June 2011). Pursuant to the cancellation of the agreement, an
impairment loss of HK$50,000,000 was recognised in respect of
intangible asset during the year under review. After negotiation,
the Company was able to retain HK$15,000,000 of the Deposit,
which was treated as gain on forfeiture of the deposit for the
disposal of the LCoS television business. As a result of the
aforesaid factors, a loss of HK$35,000,000 was reported from
the discontinued (LCoS television) operations for the year under
review.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R B M E AT

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had a deficiency in
shareholders’ equity of approximately HK$306,857,000
(831 December 2010: a deficiency of approximately
HK$231,420,000). As at 31 December 2011, the short term and
long term interest bearing debts to shareholders’ equity was nil
(81 December 2010: nil).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

The Group generally finances its operation by internally
generated cash flow and banking facilities provided by its
bankers.

Prudent financial management and selective investment criteria
have enabled the Group to maintain a strong financial position.
As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s bank balances and cash
amounted to approximately HK$19,293,000 (31 December 2010:
HK$15,856,000).

In 2011, the current ratio was approximately 0.24 (2010:
approximately 12.4) based on current assets of approximately
HK$21,631,000 and current liabilities of approximately
HK$90,793,000.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group was in a net cash position.
The Directors considered that the Group shall have sufficient
financial resources to meet its working capital requirement.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERLAEEYSE S Pakin

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK
MANAGEMENT

Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities, revenue and
expenditure are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and the
United States dollars. The Group was not exposed to material
exchange risks and had not employed any financial instruments
for hedging purposes.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 December 2011, the Group employed approximately
8 employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s remuneration policies
are primarily based on prevailing market salary levels and the
performance of the respective companies and individuals
concerned. Employees may also participate in the share option
scheme of the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

At 31 December 2011, the Group had no significant contingent
liability.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has established a formal and transparent
procedure to protect the interests of the shareholders of the
Company. The Company regularly reviews the corporate
governance procedures and developments of the Company. The
Company applied the principles and complied with all the code
provisions as set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (“Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules (the
“Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
throughout the year under review, except for the deviations from
provisions A.2.1 and A.4.1 of the Code which are explained in
the relevant paragraph as below.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of dealings as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
the Directors have complied with such code of conduct and the
required standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors throughout the year
ended 31 December 2011.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year till the date of this report, the members of the
board of Directors included:
Executive Directors

Mr. Sun Ying Chung (Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. Chan Sung Wai (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lee Kwok Leung
Mr. Yang Yiu Chong, Ronald Jeffrey

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lum Pak Sum
Mr. Law Chun Choi
Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ﬂ:\ Hv/\lil #ﬁ =

The board of Directors held several board meetings during the ZEZgR#Ez2-_FT——F+_-_A=+—HILFER
year ended 31 December 2011. Details of the attendance of the ®iTZAEFECH EFS 28R HEFBOT
meetings of the board of Directors are as follows:

Attendance
Directors ) R B
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Sun Ying Chung FEOTREAE 6/13
Mr. Chan Sung Wai PREAE S A 9/13
Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph BERALE 13/13
Non-executive Directors FBITES
Mr. Lee Kwok Leung TEBREAE 8/13
Mr. Yang Yiu Chong, Ronald Jeffrey BIRREE 12/13
Independent non-executive Directors BIAFHITES
Mr. Lum Pak Sum MIERREE 13/13
Mr. Law Chun Choi BEMEE 13/13
Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick BRERE 13/13

‘1 ‘1 Karce International Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2011




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Apart from the above regular board meetings of the year, the
board of Directors will meet on other occasions when a board-
level decision on a particular matter is required. The Directors
receive details of agenda items for decision and minutes of
committee meetings in advance of each board meeting. The
board of Directors has reserved for its decision or consideration
matters covering corporate strategy, annual and interim results,
Directors’ appointment, succession planning, risk management,
major acquisitions, disposals and capital transactions, and other
significant operational and financial matters. Major corporate
matters that are specifically delegated by the board of Directors
to the management include the preparation of annual and interim
accounts for board approval before public reporting, execution
of business strategies and initiatives adopted by the board of
Directors, implementation of adequate systems of internal controls
and risk management procedures, and compliance with relevant
statutory requirements, rules and regulations.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Under the code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and CEO
should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the chairman
and CEO of the Company should be clearly established and
set out in writing. The roles of the chairman and the CEO of the
Company were not separated and were performed by the same
individual, Mr. Sun Ying Chung throughout the year 2011.

The Directors meet regularly to consider major matters affecting
the operations of the Group. As such, the Directors consider that
this structure will not impair the balance of power and authority
between the Directors and the management of Group and
believes that this structure will enable the Group to make and
implement decisions promptly and efficiently.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under the code provision A.4.1, the appointment of non-executive
Directors should have been appointed for a specific term.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the non-executive
Directors were not appointed for any specific terms as they are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the Company’s
annual general meeting in accordance with the Company’s bye-
laws.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 28 March 2012.
[t comprises of three independent non-executive Directors and
the Chairman of the Board, and is currently chaired by Mr. Sun
Ying Chung.

Its primary objectives include reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board, identifying individuals suitably qualified
to become Board members, assessing the independence
of independent non-executive Directors and making
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors.

The Nomination Committee has not held any meeting since its
establishment.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Under the code provision B.1.1, the Company should establish
a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) with
specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its
authority and duties. The role and function of the Remuneration
Committee include the determination of the specific
remuneration packages of all executive Directors and senior
management of the Company, including benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, such as any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment,
and make recommendations to the board of the remuneration of
non-executive Directors.

Karce International Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2011
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During the year and until the date of this report, members of the RAFEHEARELH FHEES 2K ERRE
Remuneration Committee included:
Mr. Sun Ying Chung EPTHRLAE
Mr. Lum Pak Sum MIEARE £
Mr. Law Chun Choi BEM L
Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick BEREFLE
Three meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held in  HMZ 8GN T ——FHRIT = XD UTmH
2011 to discuss remuneration related matters. Details of the BB SEE -FHEESSeZ 2HEHBO T
attendance of the meeting of the Remuneration Committee are
as follows:

Attendance
Members RE R &
Mr. Sun Ying Chung FOTREE 2/3
Mr. Lum Pak Sum N EE e 3/3
Mr. Law Chun Choi mEMTE 3/3
Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick BRELE 2/3

The Remuneration Committee has considered and reviewed
the existing terms of employment contracts of the executive
Directors and appointment letters of the non-executive
Directors with reference to the factors including salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
of the Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the
Company and desirability of performance-based remuneration.
The Remuneration Committee considers that the existing
terms of employment contracts of the executive Directors and
appointment letters of the non-executive Directors are fair and
reasonable. Details of the emolument policy of the Directors are
set out on page 31 of this report.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Company’s external auditors are Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
(the “Auditors”). The audit committee of the Group (the “Audit
Committee”) is responsible for considering the appointment
of the external auditors and reviewing any non-audit functions
performed by the external auditors, including whether such non-
audit functions could lead to any potential material adverse
effect on the Group. For the year ended 31 December 2011, the
Auditors have performed audit services and their remuneration in
respect of audit service is HK$880,000.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

As required by Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
established an Audit Committee with written terms of reference
which deal clearly with its authority and duties. Its principal
duties are to review and supervise the Group’s financial reporting
process and internal control systems. During the year and
until the date of this report, members of the Audit Committee
included:

Mr. Lum Pak Sum
Mr. Law Chun Choi
Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick

Karce International Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2011
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The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year under

REBEFERN EXZESRBTRASE BRZ
BEggmzhFEHBOT:

review. Details of the attendance of the meetings of the Audit
Committee are as follows:

Attendance
Members 24 R E
Mr. Lum Pak Sum MIBFRITE 2/2
Mr. Law Chun Choi E LA 2/2
Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick BREXE 2/2

The Group’s audited consolidated results for the year
ended 31 December 2011 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee, which was of the opinion that the preparation of
such results complied with the applicable accounting standards,
the Listing Rules and legal requirements, and that adequate
disclosures have been made.

The Audit Committee considered that the existing proposed terms
in relation to the appointment of the Group’s external auditors are
fair and reasonable.

INVESTMENT STEERING COMMITTEE

An Investment Steering Committee was established in June
2010 which composed of one executive Director, one non-
executive Director and one independent non-executive
Director. The Committee is responsible for the consideration,
recommendation of potential investment projects. Ad-hoc
meetings will be held when potential projects are identified.
During the meeting, they will review individual project’s position
and action to be taken if necessary, and to recommend to the
board for consideration and approval.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR ACCOUNTS

The Directors’ responsibilities for the accounts and the
responsibilities of the external auditors to the shareholders of the
Company are set out on pages 33 and 34 of this report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
Group’s system of internal control to ensure the effective and
adequate internal control system. The Board convened meetings
regularly to discuss financial, operational and compliance
controls risk management functions.

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company discloses relevant information to shareholders
through the Company’s annual report and financial statements,
the interim report, as well as the Annual General Meeting
(“AGM”). The AGM allows the Directors to meet and
communicate with shareholders.

To further promote effective communication, the corporate website
is maintained to disseminate Company announcements and other
relevant financial and non-financial information electronically on a
timely basis.

Karce International Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2011
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DIRECTORS’ PROFILES
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Sun Ying Chung (“Mr. Sun”), aged 72, has extensive
experience in the investment, construction and property
development in the major cities of the PRC. Mr. Sun has been
the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company since April
2009.

Mr. Chan Sung Wai (“Mr. Chan”), aged 63, has been an
executive Director of the Company since April 2009. Mr. Chan
has extensive experience in trading, real property and shipping
industries. He also has extensive experience in financial and
media business. He has been working for a number of years
on the major media companies in Hong Kong, and responsible
for covering, editing and writing commentaries. Mr. Chan has
also been a chief editor of the petroleum magazine and has
comprehensive knowledge on the media industry in the PRC.

Mr. Chan was an executive director of Grand Field Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 115) during the period from
November 2007 to June 2008, and Energy International
Investments Holdings Limited (stock code: 353) during the
period from November 2008 to April 2011.

Currently, he is an executive director of Asia Resources Holdings
Limited (stock code: 899), a company listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange, since October 2008.
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Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph (“Mr. Wong”), aged 59, has been
an executive Director of the Company since October 2009. Mr.
Wong is a fellow member of both The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He has more than 30 years’ extensive
experience in auditing, corporate and financial management
with a number of companies in different business sectors
which include an international accounting firm and local listed
companies.

Mr. Wong was an executive director of Grand Field Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 115) during the periods from 16
March to 31 December 2007 and from 20 November 2009 to 15
August 2011.

Currently, Mr. Wong is an executive director of Asia Resources
Holdings Limited (stock code: 899) since October 2009. He is
also an independent non-executive director of Tungtex (Holdings)
Company Limited (stock code: 518) since August 2004.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lee Kwok Leung (“Mr. Lee”), aged 58, has been a non-
executive Director of the Company since 2000. He is the
managing director of Derico Financial Capital Limited and
Success Talent Investments Limited. He has years of direct
investment, fund management and banking experience. Mr.
Lee holds an investment advisor status from the Securities and
Futures Commissions from 2000.

Mr. Yang Yiu Chong, Ronald Jeffrey (“Mr. Yang”), aged 45,
has been a non-executive Director of the Company since 2000.
He is also an executive director of Sing Tao News Corporation
Limited (stock code: 1105), a listed company in Hong Kong. He
had worked in the corporate finance field with an international
bank for four years and held a senior position with a publicly
listed printing company. Mr. Yang holds a double bachelors’
degree in accounting and finance from Boston University, the
United States of America.

Karce International Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2011
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Lum Pak Sum (“Mr. Lum”), aged 51, has been an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since April
2009. Mr. Lum holds a master degree in business administration
from the University of Warwick, UK and a LLB (Honor) degree
from the University of Wolverhampton, UK. He is currently a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, UK. Mr. Lum has over 20 years’ experience in the
financial field, the money market and capital market.

Mr. Lum was an independent non-executive director of Grand
Field Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 115) for the period
from July 2004 to May 2008, China Star Film Group Limited
(stock code: 8172) for the period from September 2005 to
December 2008, Heng Xin China Holdings Limited (stock code:
8046) for the period from June 2007 to November 2008 and
Energy International Investments Limited (stock code: 353) for
the period from September 2005 to June 2011.

Currently, he is an independent non-executive director of
Waytung Global Group Limited (stock code: 21), Bestway
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 718), Radford Capital
Investment Limited (stock code: 901) and Asia Resources
Holdings Limited (stock code: 899). These companies are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He is also an
independent director of Asia Green Agriculture Corporation, a
company trading on the Over-The-Counter Bulletin Board in the
United States since September 2011.
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Mr. Law Chun Choi (“Mr. Law”), aged 51, has been an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 22 April
2010. Mr. Law is a practising and fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, the Hong
Kong Institute of Company Secretaries and the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Mr. Law graduated
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Postgraduate
Diploma in Corporate Administration and Professional Diploma in
Accountancy.

Mr. Law is the Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of
China Infrastructure Investment Limited (stock code: 600) since
January 2012 for which he joined in 2005 as Financial Controller
and Company Secretary. He is a rich-experienced accountant and
has extensive experience in diversified business in Asia-Pacific. Mr.
Law is also a director of Jade Century Investments Ltd., a private
investments holding company incorporated in BVI, since April
1998.

Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick (‘Mr. Mak”), aged 47, has been an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since April
2010. Mr. Mak is a Registered Solicitor of the High Court of
Hong Kong and a Managing Partner of Patrick Mak & Tse. Mr.
Mak has extensive legal experience as a practicing solicitor.

He was awarded the Hong Kong Common Professional
Examination Certificate in Laws by The University of Hong Kong
in 1995 and was awarded his Postgraduate Certificate in Laws
(P.C.LL) by The University of Hong Kong in 1998.

His major areas of practice include civil litigation, SFC
investigations and proceedings, insolvency and bankruptcy and
corporate finance. He had advised on a broad range of corporate
projects involving corporate finance, merger and acquisition,
project finance, initial public offerings on the Main Board and the
Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and AIM board listing in the London Stock Exchange as
well as on their corporate structures and due diligence process.

Mr. Mak is being an independent non-executive director of
U-Right International Holdings Limited (Provisional Liquidators
Appointed) (stock code: 627) and a director of Asia Green
Agriculture Corporation (OTCBB:AGAC) which incorporated
under the laws of the State of Nevada, USA.
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements of Karce International
Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on page 42 and 43 of the annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in either the authorised or issued
share capital of the Company during the year. Details of the
share capital of the Company are set out in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 45 of the annual report.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company had no distributable reserves at 31 December
2011 calculated under The Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended). The Company’s share premium account, in
the amount of HK$102,675,000 at 31 December 2011 (2010:
HK$102,675,000), may be distributed in the form of fully paid
bonus shares.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@ itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and
share premium accounts.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier and two largest suppliers taken together accounted for
65% and 100% respectively of the Group’s total purchases for
the year. The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest
customer and five largest customers taken together accounted
for 31% and 78% respectively of the Group’s total turnover for
the year.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders of
the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors of the
Company own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had
any interest in the five largest suppliers or customers.
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DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Chairman and Managing Director
Mr. Sun Ying Chung

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Sung Wai (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lee Kwok Leung
Mr. Yang Yiu Chong, Ronald Jeffrey

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lum Pak Sum
Mr. Law Chun Choi
Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick

In accordance with Bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s
bye-laws, Messrs. Lum Pak Sum, Lee Kwok Leung and Wong
King Lam, Joseph shall retire from office and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Company
considers that all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2011, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and Chief Executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”)) which were notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange, or as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed issuers (“Model Code”) set out in the
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the
Company (Long positions)

BYFHTES

ARRERERBLIFNTESRETEHARSM
BRAR (B ES EmRA (T ETARRL)
FEBGREBIEFLNFEER - AR AR R
FRBBFNTTES I REIL -

EERTEN
REE 2 E

]

RZE——FF+_A=+—H ARREEREE
THRAEBRARARSKEMTMBAELE (EERES
KERE GO ([FH RBEEG]) EXVER) 2 &’ -
RN MEH T EE A BREE S KB EEG
FEIS21{EMEME AR B KB R AT SKBRERAR
AIREEAS R EEDEIEATFEFE ZERLM
ARG ETARBIMI ST ATEH 2 EM AR ESHETE
FRGWEESTR| ([ZEESFR) ) BASITMEARQF]
MR 2 ERESIORBINT

RAFEBREEIEBTZEER
(&)

Approximate

Number of ordinary percentage

shares held of issued

Name of Director personal interests share capital
BEBAERZ HEBRTREAZ

=N EBEREE BROBEDE
Mr. Sun Ying Chung 23,000,000 3.27%

ETREE
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, none of the
Directors or Chief Executive of the Company or their associates
had any interest or short position in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business
(as defined in the Listing Rules) to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

The executive Directors have confirmed to the Company that
they are not interested in any business apart from the Group’s
business, which competes or is likely to complete, either directly
or indirectly, with the Group’s business.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the share option scheme adopted by the Company on
29 May 2002 (the “Share Option Scheme”) are set out in note 28
to the consolidated financial statements. No options have been
granted under the share option scheme since its adoption.

DIRECTOR’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as the Share Option Scheme of the Company, at no time
during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

BEXBEEEN R_T——F+_A=1+—8"
BEARAEZTATIETRABAREZBEAL
RARBREAAEEAE (E& R EHFEBERE
51) Z Betn - B D RIEZ A T ARERE S
KREABIEDIEXVERZ 7 R8N B R EME AR A M
B P RARBRARARIERE ST P ERIE
B2MGATHEZECMARBZRETRESITH
SARP MR 2 EAEEIORE

EERERGHN R

ARBHEEAMBRARMETLENARBES
BRI EEEA MR FREIAFEEM
BEADAERZBAASEEG 2EXAH (E
EREWMAA) -

ENTEENARTRE  BARELHI - EFH
EREMESRA S HERRAEBEH AR
SR BF R RBF -

iR R ES S

ARARIRZZZE_FRA-TNBRMZRERE
it ([REBEER ) 2 FBERN AP BHRERM
7128 o B R4k R B B AT B A K B EAR IR R B X
REAT B3R R B HE -

EEUWBROTES ZEF

FRAND B2 REBER BI5N RAFEERERA
ARBREEAME AR RES BEM LT BE
ARPEFAEBEARASEMEMEABEERZ
Bedn sl 1B 75 i 2%

—E-—FFH EREXEEERLA
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2011, so far as was known to the Directors
and the Chief Executive of the Company, the following persons
(other than any director and chief executive of the Company)
who had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or as recorded in the register to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange:

FTERR zE#@ KK

RZE——F+-_A=+—HB MARREZFIE
EITBRABA U TAL (RARFMEMNEEREE
TRABBRINRARB Z R RAEABRNDTHESR
BIEEH K EE RO FEXVEL 2 &35 3B 2 & i
ARARBRBEZRARAR HREBEEFLHE
GEPIFEIB6IEFE 2 B LM 2 EEIORE X
SITHMERRA MBI ZERIORE

Approximate

percentage
Number of of issued
ordinary share capital
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held of the Company
HARQTEE BT
BRRME LB 54 FEEREREAE RAEBOE DL
(Note 1)
(FH3E1)
China Eagle Development Limited Beneficial owner (note 2) 4,669,500,000 664.83%
(“China Eagle”)
BEnEA A (Fiz2)
Hsu Ming Shan Interest held by controlled 4,669,500,000 664.83%
corporation (note 2)
T & REGEERFA 2 ES
(KzE2)
Lam Suk Fong Interest held by controlled 4,669,500,000 664.83%

corporation (note 2)
RIEHEE RS 2w
(MF5E2)
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Approximate

percentage
Number of of issued
ordinary share capital
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held of the Company
EEARE BT
BEHEEEB g g BEREE RAEBNE DL
(Note 1)
(KysE1)
Fairtime International Limited (“Fairtime”) Beneficial owner (note 3) 612,500,000 87.21%
EnlA A (FizE3)
Chan Shun Yuen Interest held by controlled 612,500,000 87.21%
corporation (note 3)
BR 3L T REHEERFE 2w
(PBF&E3)
Taiwan Micro Display Corporation (“TMDC”) Beneficial owner (note 4) 468,000,000 66.63%
BEMAZERND AR AR BEmA A (Kie)
(TREMEZGER])
Golden Mount Limited (“Golden Mount”) Beneficial owner 198,944,000 (L) 28.33%
ERlAA
Chim Pui Chung Interest held by controlled 198,944,000 (L) 28.33%
corporation (note 5)
EER REHEEFE 2w
(Bt&E5)
—E-—FFR RRBXESEFTRLT
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Notes:

)

Karce |

All the shares are long positions.

The percentages are calculated based on the total number of issued
shares of the Company of 702,356,000 shares as at 31 December
2011.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 30 April
2008 and the supplemental agreement dated 24 October 2008
(collectively refer to as the “SPA”), subject to the provisions stated
therein being satisfied, the Company might issue to China Eagle
(beneficially owned by Hsu Ming Shan and Lam Suk Fong) up to
a total of HK$1,867,800,000 zero coupon convertible bonds (the
“Convertible Bond”) due 2014 at a conversion price (the “Conversion
Price”) of HK$0.40 each, which entitling China Eagle to subscribe
for up to 4,669,500,000 conversion shares at the Conversion Price
upon exercise of the conversion rights attached to the Convertible
Bonds in full.

The SPA completed on 15 January 2009 (the “Completion Date”)
and on the same date the Company issued the first tranche
of HK$67,800,000 Convertible Bonds to China Eagle at the
Conversion Price (which entiting China Eagle to subscribe for
169,500,000 conversion shares upon exercise of the conversion
rights attached to the Convertible Bonds in full). As at the date
of this report, the Company has not yet issued the remaining
HK$1,800,000,000 Convertible Bonds.

Pursuant to the SPA, subject to the provisions stated therein being
satisfied, the Company might issue to Fairtime (beneficially owned
by Chan Shun Yuen who now known as Chan Hau Kong) up to a
total of HK$245,000,000 Convertible Bonds, which entitling Fairtime
to subscribe for 612,500,000 conversion shares at the Conversion
Price upon exercise of the conversion rights attached to such
convertible bonds in full.
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5]

RN

A.

FERNEREFR -

ZEBOHIBER-_TE—F+A=+—RHZAK
N BB BT 42 2702,356,000/% 51 & ©

REBHA-_ZT N \EFNA=ZTAZEEHZLE
MAEZTT\F+A-THAZH#AHE (FHEIE
Bzl WEEPAEZ GOUEBERBRT AR
AIRENR0.4078 L 2 AR (E ([#2P%(E ] ) FJ 8£[A China
Eagle ( FF84H & Lam Suk FongE A ) 1THR %
& #£1,867,800,000 T —F — N F B 2 T 27]
MR E S ([JHRARES ) - W T China Eagled] 7
AIRREH N T 2 R RS TE R IR R ERE
% %4,669,500,000% 32 i f% 17 2 #E ) »

BEWMHER-_TTAF—A+RB([EXB])%
B BB AR ER I E A China Eagle® 1T & #t
67,800,000 7t 2 A] # f% & % (E B ¥ China Eagle
ARABRELAM T2 EREERRITHEERE
169,500,000 #2 AR A% 10 2 #EFI) o AR 45 B 8 - A<
N EMIRETT#2%EE1,800,000,000/8 7T 2 Al # pR & % o

RIEBEE iR WATE R ATE 2 R EERBART -
N A A A] gE Al Fairtime (BRI (REREK) B
A )B1THR %4 245,000,000 T 2 AJ B E S
I B, T Fairtime Al 1A 52 5 Al 2 IR B 5 BT T 2 1R AR i
BETE R IR IR E R E612,500,0008% A% i 7 2
HEF




DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EETWMES

On Completion Date, the Company issued the first tranche of
HK$45,000,000 Convertible Bonds to Fairtime (which entitling
Fairtime to subscribe for 112,500,000 conversion shares upon
exercise of the conversion rights attached to the Convertible Bonds
in full). As at the date of this report, the Company has not yet issued
the remaining HK$200,000,000 Convertible Bonds.

4. Pursuant to the SPA, the Company issued HK$187,200,000
Convertible Bonds to TMDC on the Completion Date (which entitling
TMDC to 468,000,000 conversion shares upon exercise of the
conversion rights attached to the Convertible Bonds in full).

5. The entire issued share capital of Golden Mount is wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Chim Pui Chung. By virtue of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Mr. Chim Pui Chung is deemed
to be interested in the 198,944,000 shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified
and is not aware of any other persons who had an interest
or a short position in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO as at
31 December 2011.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES,
WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company had outstanding zero coupon convertible bonds
in the amount of HK$300,000,000, issued in January 2009,
convertible at HK$0.4 per share, due in 2014, issued for the
very substantial acquisition of liquid crystal on silicon (“LC0S”)
Television where details have been disclosed in notes 3 and 25.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had no outstanding
convertible securities, warrants or other similar rights as at
31 December 2011 and there has been no exercise of any
convertible securities, warrants or similar rights during the year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions entered into for the year are set out in
note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

R B - AR F A Fairtime® 17 & #£45,000,0007%
TLZ AR E S (H B FFairtime] 7 A #2 3% & 5 Kt
F 2 M % RE R BT 1% 3R BE112,500,000/% #2 %
Bz R cRARE BE AR A AREITHEE
200,000,000 7T 2 AT #2 % & 5 ©

4. WREEEWS A27RZEXKBEREEMEREET
187,200,000/ T 2 Al #M AR E 75 (KMl T & 8 MEL &
BATR A RRESFM T 2 R EEHITERRE
468,000,000/% & B 10 2 HEF) ©

5. Golden Mountz 2&fE BT AT REFE R LELE
BolEl EREHFRAEKD EERLERER
7#198,944,00008 AN A B I 15 o B s o

B EXFmEEN R-_T——F+-_A=+—8"
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REBITALTNFEBRERRE ([LCoSHERZ
IEEANBEEN_TTNF - AETALEHE
300,000,000 T A —E— WEFH 2 T 8 A%
BF ZEBEHFAKREBROAB TR -FECHH
3NS5 FE o

BREXHBBEEN RRFAR_T——F+-A
ST BYEARITRZABBRES RREESL
SROVRER - T P TR T R R AR AT HR AR RE 5 - SR AR
& SRR -
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is based
on their merits, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, upon considering the Group'’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme as an
incentive to directors and eligible employees.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2011, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the Company’s listed securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to and within
the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that there is a
sufficient public float of the issued share capital of the Company
throughout the year ended 31 December 2011.

Karce International Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2011
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied throughout the year ended
31 December 2011 with the Code of Corporate Governance
Practices as contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. A
report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company is set out on pages 10 to 17 of the annual
report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011.

AUDITORS

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu was appointed as auditor
of the Company pursuant to an ordinary resolution at the
special general meeting of the Company held on 21 September
2010. Messrs. HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng, Certified Public
Accountants, acted as auditor of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2009 and up to 5 August 2010.

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to
re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Sun Ying Chung

Chairman and Managing Director
Hong Kong

28 March 2012
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Deloitte.
=2)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

KARCE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
RREXFEEFRLA

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial
statements of Karce International Holdings Company Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) set out on pages 42 to 130, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2011, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Karce International Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2011
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Except for the inability
to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence as explained
below, we conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the HKICPA. Because of
the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion
paragraphs, however, we were not able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit
opinion.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Limitation of Scope — Deconsolidation of
a Subsidiary during the Year Ended 31
December 2009

As set out in note 3 (i) to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group completed the acquisition of Pacific Choice Holdings
Limited (“Pacific Choice”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Pacific Choice Group”) on 15 January 2009
for a total consideration of HK$604,616,000 which mainly
comprised cash, promissory notes issued by the Group and
convertible bonds issued by the Company.

BB 2 BT
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As set out in note 3 (i) to the consolidated financial statements,
the directors of the Company have been unable to obtain and
access to the books and records of B& Y& (#IN) AR
‘A \] United Opto-Electronics (Suzhou) Co., Ltd. (the “PRC
Subsidiary”), an indirectly owned subsidiary of Pacific Choice,
after 30 November 2009 and resolved that the Group no longer
had the power to govern the financial and operating policies
of the PRC Subsidiary, and accordingly the control over the
PRC Subsidiary was lost on that date. The PRC Subsidiary has
therefore been deconsolidated from the consolidated financial
statements of the Group and recognised as an available-for-sale
investment from 1 December 2009 onwards. Besides, since the
assets of the PRC Subsidiary and the planned operations thereof
predominantly accounted for the reason for which the Group
acquired the Pacific Choice Group, the loss of control over the
PRC Subsidiary effectively impaired any practical value of the
entire Pacific Choice Group, if any, and therefore, the directors of
the Company considered that assets of the entities comprising
the Pacific Choice Group other than the PRC Subsidiary (the
“Pacific Choice Remaining Group”) should be fully impaired on
the same date the Group lost control over the PRC Subsidiary.

We were appointed as auditors of the Group pursuant to an
ordinary resolution passed at the special general meeting of
the Company held on 21 September 2010 and as a result
of the circumstances described above, the directors of the
Company have been unable to provide us with a complete set
of accounting books and records of the PRC Subsidiary. We
have therefore been unable to carry out audit procedures to
obtain sufficient reliable audit evidence to satisfy ourselves as to
whether:

(i) the accumulated losses of the Group as at 1 January 2010
resulted from the losses on () deconsolidation of the PRC
Subsidiary and (i) incurred by the PRC Subsidiary for the
period from 15 January 2009 (date of acquisition) to 30
November 2009 (date of deconsolidation) are free from
material misstatement; and

Karce International Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2011
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(i) the Group had lost its control over the PRC Subsidiary
and whether it was appropriate to deconsolidate the
assets and liabilities and cease to record results of
operations of the PRC Subsidiary from the consolidated
financial statements of the Group and be recognised as an
available-for-sale investment.

We were therefore unable to determine whether any adjustments
were necessary to be made to the accumulated losses as at 1
January 2010 and the results of operations for the years ended
31 December 2011 and 2010 that might have a significant effect
on the state of the Group’s affairs as at 31 December 2011,
31 December 2010 and 1 January 2010 and on its loss for the
year ended 31 December 2011 and profit for the year ended 31
December 2010. These matters caused us to disclaim our audit
opinion on the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2010.

Limitation of Scope - Fair Value and Carrying
Amounts of Convertible Bonds as at 31
December 2011 and 31 December 2010
and Interest Charge for the years ended 31
December 2011 and 31 December 2010

As set out in note 3(j) to the consolidated financial statements,
on 15 January 2009, the Company issued zero-coupon
convertible bonds due in 2014 with a principal amount of
HK$300,000,000, subject to a downward adjustment, as part
of the consideration for acquisition of the Pacific Choice Group.
As set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements,
the directors of the Company appointed an independent valuer
to perform a valuation of the fair value of the convertible bonds
issued at the date of issue on 15 January 2009. However, we
were unable to obtain sufficient evidence to satisfy ourselves
as to whether the valuation methodology and the assumptions
adopted by the valuer in this valuation was appropriate and
accordingly, we were unable to satisfy ourselves as to whether:

(i) the fair value of the liability component of the convertible
bonds on initial recognition was reliably measured in
accordance with the relevant requirements of Hong Kong
Accounting Standard (“HKAS”) 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” issued by the HKICPA
(“HKAS 39”) and whether their carrying values of
HK$229,583,000, HK$201,389,000 and HK$176,785,000
as at 31 December 2011, 31 December 2010 and 1
January 2010, respectively, as disclosed in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements were free from material
misstatement;
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(iv)

N AZEEN RS

convertible bonds reserve representing equity component
of the convertible bonds, net of deferred tax liabilities
arising from the issue of the convertible bonds thereof,
amounting to HK$120,398,000 as at 31 December 2011,
31 December 2010 and 1 January 2010 as recognised in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity was free
from material misstatement;

any other embedded derivatives of the convertible bonds
issued for the acquisition of the Pacific Choice Group
would have been recognised in accordance with HKAS
39 as at 31 December 2011, 31 December 2010 and 1
January 2010;

goodwill of HK$77,685,000 arising from the acquisition of
the Pacific Choice Group as at 15 January 2009 (date of
acquisition) as disclosed in note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements was reliably measured in accordance
with the relevant requirements of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standard 3 “Business Combinations” issued
by the HKICPA and whether the impairment loss of
HK$77,685,000 recognised in respect of goodwill during
the year ended 31 December 2009 and included in
the accumulated losses as at 31 December 2011, 31
December 2010 and 1 January 2010 was free from
material misstatement; and

the interest charge recognised in respect of the liability
component of the convertible bonds, as set out in note
25 to the consolidated financial statements, amounting to
HK$28,194,000 and HK$24,604,000 for the years ended
31 December 2011 and 2010, respectively, was free from
material misstatement.

We were therefore unable to determine whether any adjustments
were necessary to be made to the accumulated losses as at 1
January 2010 and the results of operations for the years ended
31 December 2011 and 2010 that might have a significant effect
on the state of the Group’s affairs as at 31 December 2011,
31 December 2010 and 1 January 2010 and on its loss for the
year ended 31 December 2011 and profit for the year ended 31
December 2010. These matters caused us to disclaim our audit
opinion on the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2010.

Karce International Holdings Company Limited
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Limitation of Scope — Carrying Amount of
Promissory Notes as at 31 December 2011
and Interest Charge and Income Tax Credit for
the year ended 31 December 2011

As set out in note 3(j) to the consolidated financial statements,
on 15 January 2009, the Group issued zero-coupon promissory
notes due in 2011 with a principal amount of HK$375,000,000
as part of the consideration for the acquisition of the Pacific
Choice Group. As further set out in note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements, principal amounts of HK$250,000,000
and HK$37,500,000 of the promissory notes were early
settled and cancelled, respectively, in 2009, and the maturity
of the remaining promissory notes with a principal amount of
HK$87,500,000 was extended to January 2012. As detailed in
note 2(i) to the consolidated financial statements, the maturity of
the promissory notes was extended to January 2012. However,
these liabilities have not been settled, and instead, the directors
of the Company have engaged legal counsel to negotiate with
the vendors of the Pacific Choice Group to cancel, among other
matters, the promissory notes, and therefore is not prepared
to settle the liabilities arising from the promissory notes. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, no demand for claims
of any amount of the promissory notes has been received from
the holder of the promissory notes or its representative up to the
date of this report.

We were unable either to obtain direct confirmations from the
holder of the promissory notes or other supporting evidence
to satisfy ourselves as to whether the promissory notes of
HK$87,036,000 included in the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2011 and the
interest charge of HK$12,072,000 and income tax credit of
HK$1,992,000 recognised in respect of the promissory notes
and included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2011 are free from
material misstatements. Any adjustment that might have been
found to be necessary in respect of the above may have a
significant effect on the state of the Group’s affairs as at 31
December 2011 and on its loss for the year then ended.
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Limitation of Scope — Reversal of Impairment
Loss Recognised in respect of Intangible
Asset during the Year Ended 31 December
2010 and Impairment Loss Recognised in
respect of Intangible Asset during the Year
Ended 31 December 2011 and Carrying Value
of Intangible Asset as at 31 December 2011
and 31 December 2010

Included in the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2010 is an intangible asset, as set out in note 17
to the consolidated financial statements, with a carrying value of
HK$50,000,000 arising from the reversal of the impairment loss
recognised in respect of intangible asset during the year ended
31 December 2010. The carrying value was determined by the
directors of the Company based on the amount of the non-
refundable deposit received in January 2011 for the proposed
disposal of Sourcestar Profits Limited (“Sourcestar”) and its
subsidiaries, the Pacific Choice Group. As detailed in note 3(iv)
to the consolidated financial statements, the total consideration
of the proposed disposal was more than HK$50,000,000. In
the absence of a valuation prepared in accordance with HKAS
36 “Impairment of Assets” issued by the HKICPA (“HKAS 36”),
we therefore were unable to satisfy ourselves as to whether the
reversal of impairment loss of HK$50,000,000 included in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2010 was free from material misstatement
and whether any additional reversal was necessary and the
carrying value of the intangible asset had been reliably measured
in accordance with HKAS 38 “Intangible Assets” issued by the
HKICPA (“HKAS 38”) as at 31 December 2010. These matters
caused us to disclaim our audit opinion on the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010.

Karce International Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2011
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As set out in notes 3(v) and 17 to the consolidated financial
statements, the proposed disposal of Sourcestar was terminated
upon the lapse of the relevant agreement during the year
ended 31 December 2011 and the directors of the Company
determined that the then carrying value of the intangible asset
of HK$50,000,000 was fully impaired. Due to the circumstances
described in the above paragraph and in the absence of a
valuation prepared in accordance with HKAS 36, we were
therefore unable to satisfy ourselves as to whether:

(i) the impairment of such amount (as disclosed in note
11 to the consolidated financial statements) included in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2011 is recognised in
accordance with the requirements of HKAS 38; and

(i)  the carrying value of the intangible asset has been
reliably measured in accordance with HKAS 38 as at 31
December 2011.

Any adjustment that might have been found to be necessary in
respect of the above may have a significant effect on the state of
the Group’s affairs as at 31 December 2011 and 31 December
2010 and on its loss for the year ended 31 December 2011 and
profit for the year ended 31 December 2010.

Going Concern

As set out in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had net current liabilities of approximately HK$69,162,000
and net liabilities of approximately HK$306,857,000 as at 31
December 2011. The Company is pursuing certain measures to
improve the Group’s liquidity and financial position. The validity
of the going concern assumption on which the consolidated
financial statements are prepared is dependent on the
successful implementation of these measures. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on the assumption that
the Group will continue as a going concern and therefore do not
include any adjustments relating to the realisation of assets that
may be necessary if the Group is unable to continue as a going
concern.
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Should the going concern assumption be inappropriate,
adjustments may have to be made to reflect the situation that
assets may need to be realised other than at the amounts at
which they are currently recorded in the consolidated statement
of financial position. In addition, the Group may have to provide
for further liabilities that might arise, and to reclassify non-current
assets and liabilities as current assets and liabilities.

Disclaimer of Opinion

Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis
for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraphs, we have not been able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for
an audit opinion. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. In all other respects, in our
opinion the consolidated financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
28 March 2012

Karce International Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2011
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ-Z——F+_-A=+—HLIEE

2011 2010
—E——F —E—TF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FERT AT
Continuing operations BEREETR
Revenue Wz 7 5,025 26,524
Cost of goods sold BEE MK (6,232) (22,370)
Gross (loss) profit £ (#8)F (1,207) 4,154
Other revenue H A A - 1
Administrative expenses TR (8,109) (7,206)
Selling and distribution costs SHE Mo HE R = (©)
Gain on extension of maturity of ERANERIEHA
promissory notes Iz - 11,908
Other gain and loss Hapzs R & 2,515 (2,029)
Finance costs BhE AR 9 (40,266) (36,445)
Loss before taxation BrEi R E 1R (47,067) (29,620)
Income tax credit PSR 10 6,644 4,049
Loss for the year from REFELEER 2
continuing operations REFEE (40,423) (25,571)
Discontinued operations HIEREZER
(Loss) profit for the year RERIEEEEE 2
from discontinued operations REE (EE )& 11 (35,000) 50,000
(Loss) profit for the year, RATEE AEM
attributable to owners of REE (EBR)RF
the Company (75,423) 24,429
Decrease in fair value of available- AHEEREZATE
for-sale investments, representing WD BAFE 2
other comprehensive expense for Htz2EHAX
the year (14) _
(Loss) profit and total KATER AEL
comprehensive (expense) AEE (FB)ZFR
income for the year, 2H (BX) B AEEE
attributable to owners of the
Company 12 (75,437) 24,429

—E-——FFH EREXEEERLA
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #EZ-Z——F+-_A=+—HI&E

Notes 2011 2010
B 5 —ET——F —T—ZF
(Loss) earnings per share K (EBE) 2R 15
From continuing and discontinued REFEL SR R IE
operations K ST
— Basic - ®EAR HK cents (10.74)7% 1l HK cents 3.487 1l
~ Diluted -8 HK cents (10.74)3& L HK cents 3.4875 L
From continuing operations R EFEEEES
- Basic - H&K HK cents (5.76)3# 1l HK cents (3.64)i&1ll
— Diluted - #E HK cents (5.76)3&1L HK cents (3.64)7%1ll

Karce International Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2011




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR

At 31 December 2011 R=F——%+-f=+—H

2011 2010
—E——F — T
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET T8
Non-current assets HRBEE
Equipment R 16 16 17
Intangible asset B AE 17 - 50,000
Goodwill Bk 18 - =
Available-for-sale investments A HERE 19 5,220 =
5,236 50,017
Current assets REBEE
Inventories T8 20 937 =
Trade receivables 2 5 W KIE 21 927 5,925
Prepayments T RIE 474 419
Bank balances and cash RITHEENRES 22 19,293 15,856
21,631 22,200
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade payables g 5 RN RIE 23 - 1,196
Accruals and other payables FEETE A R EAM
fE 1~ SR IE 3,757 596
Promissory notes A EE 24 87,036 =
90,793 1,792
Net current (liabilities) assets nE (B EERE (69,162) 20,408
Total assets less current WEERMBARE
liabilities (63,926) 70,425
Non-current liabilities FnBEE
Amount due to a shareholder B — B MR IA 32 1,653 7,153
Promissory notes B EIE 24 - 74,964
Convertible bonds AR E S 25 229,583 201,389
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE 26 11,695 18,339
242,931 301,845
(306,857) (231,420)
Capital and reserves EXRE #E
Share capital [N 27 70,236 70,236
Reserves ] (377,093) (301,656)
(306,857) (231,420)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 42 to 130 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

28 March 2012 and are signed on its behalf by:

FA2HEEFI0E ZRAUBHREN_ZT——_F=
At \HEE=cRBERRERZ WhTHE

Sun Ying Chung
FETR

Chairman and Managing Director

TIEREFBEHE

ERERFZF:

Chan Sung Wai

BRER A2
Director
EBE
—E——FFR EREXEEFRAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z=-%——

F+ZA=T-RALEERE

Attributable to owners of the Company

EONGTE 2PN
Capital Investment  Convertible
Share Share  redemption Special  revaluation bonds Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
-0 RE B2

A& {3 EE REffE 15l E BiERE EHRE | &t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T T T THT TAR THT TAR

(Note)
(BitE)

At 1 January 2010 RZZE-ZF-f—-H 70,236 102,675 1,564 (123) = 120,398 (650,599) (255,849)
Profit and total comprehensive income FEERFIRZAKALE

for the year = = = = = = 24,429 24,429

At 31 December 2010 RZE-Z4+-A=+-A 70,236 102,675 1,564 (123) = 120,398 (526,170) (231,420)

Loss for the year AEEER - - - = = = (75,423) (75,429)

Decrease in far value of avallable-for-sale E&m AR

investments recognised directly in equity A HEREATFERD - - - = (14) = = (14)
Loss and total comprehensive expense AEEBRREARYAE

for the year = = = = (14) = (75,423) (75,437)

At 31 December 2011 R=E——%+-A=1-H 70,236 102,675 1,564 (123) (14) 120,398 (601,593) (306,857)

Note:

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference

between the nominal amount of the share capital issued by the

Company’s subsidiaries in exchange for the nominal value of the

issued share capital of other subsidiaries pursuant to the Group’s

reorganisation.

Karce International Holdings Company Limited

Annual Report 2011
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ-Z——F+_-A=+—HLIEE

2011 2010
—g——f —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET T T
Operating activities mEER
(Loss) profit before taxation: BrEiRT (B8 ) m A :
Continuing operations BT (47,067) (29,620)
Discontinued operations IR TS (35,000) 50,000
(82,067) 20,380
Adjustments for: VISR E-E
Depreciation of equipment RIETE 6 4
Loss on disposal of equipment HER R EE 5 =
Provision for cost of inventories FERAEE 1,900 =
Gain on forfeiture of the deposit received R EN B A A
for disposal of subsidiaries Bz 2 W (15,000) -
Gain on extension of maturity of TERARZBRIEAZ
promissory notes & - (11,908)
Impairment loss (reversal of impairment MEREERR
loss) recognised in respect of VEREY R
intangible asset CRfEEIERE) 50,000 (50,000)
(Reversal of impairment loss) MW E 5 R RER Z
impairment loss recognised in respect of CREESERE)
trade receivables, net VERIEN bR (2,516) 2,029
Finance costs A& BN 40,266 36,445
Operating cash flows before LEESEIHF L KER S
movements in working capital mE (7,406) (3,050)
Increase in inventories FEE (937) -
Decrease in trade receivables g 5 W E R 7,514 284
Increase in prepayments i‘ﬁ RIFRIEIE N (55) (330)
(Decrease) increase in trade payables B SN ZIE CfA) & (1,196) 1,069
Increase (decrease) in accruals FEET &AM O ) 1,261 (371)
Decrease in amount due FEfT — R BEE A R B R
to a related company - (163)
Cash used in operations and FRRREEB2HE R
net cash used in operating activities FEREE R 2R )55 (819) (2,561)
—E-—FFR RERBEEEFRAA
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 B2 -Z——F+_-A=+—HLIEE

2011 2010
S —z-=5
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T T T
Investing activities REXEK
Refund of deposit received for disposal of ~ EEEEEFEE 2
intangible asset B Uiz & (35,000) —
Purchases of available-for-sale investments & & a] it H &% & (5,234) -
Purchase of equipment BERXE (10) (21)
Deposits received for disposal of intangible  HEEFEE 2 2 KiZdE
asset 50,000 -
Repayment from a related company KE—HEEEARZER - 7171
Net cash generated from REREXB2EHLSFE
investing activities 9,756 7,150
Cash used in a financing activity FREETEZ2ES
Repayment to a shareholder BN—BKEZZE (5,500) (14,277)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and HERREESHEEBEREM
cash equivalents ORD) F5E 3,437 (9,688)
Cash and cash equivalents FUZReRRESEHEER
at the beginning of the year 15,856 25,544
Cash and cash equivalents FERZRERRESEHEER
at the end of the year, BIRTTHEENRS
represented by bank balances and cash 19,293 15,856

Karce International Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2011




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ-Z——F+_-A=+—HLIEE

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are Claredon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda
and Suite 3404, 34th Floor, Bank of America Tower, 12
Harcourt Road, Central, Hong Kong, respectively.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 35.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company have given careful consideration
to the future liquidity of the Group in light of the fact that
the Group had net current liabilities of approximately
HK$69,162,000 and net liabilities of approximately
HK$306,857,000 as at 31 December 2011. These
conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis as the directors of the Company consider that, after
taking into account the cash flow projections for the year
ending 31 December 2012 and the bank balances and
cash of approximately HK$19,293,000 as at 31 December
2011, the Group has sufficient resources to continue its
operations for the foreseeable future.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continueq)

In addition, the following proposed measures would
improve the Group’s liquidity and financial position:

(i) the indebtedness of the Group mainly comprised of
liabilities arising from the acquisition of the Pacific
Choice Group (as defined in note 3) during the year
ended 31 December 2009, including promissory
notes, convertible bonds and deferred tax liabilities,
amounting to approximately HK$328,314,000 in
aggregate as at 31 December 2011. The Group has
put continuing efforts to negotiate with the vendors
in the Acquisition Agreement (as defined in note 3)
to sell the Pacific Choice Group back to the vendors
and, among other matters, cancellation of the
promissory notes and convertible bonds, or to seek
for other potential purchaser(s) to acquire the Pacific
Choice Group. As set out in note 24, the maturity
of the promissory notes was extended to January
2012. However, these liabilities have not been
settled, and instead, the directors of the Company
have engaged legal counsel for the negotiations with
the vendors of the Pacific Choice Group to cancel,
among other matters, the promissory notes, and is
therefore not prepared to settle the liabilities arising
from the promissory notes. No demand for claims
of any amount of the promissory notes has been
received from the holder of the promissory notes
or its representative up to the date of this report.
The directors of the Company have evaluated all
the relevant facts available to them, and are of the
opinion that should the sell-back and cancellations
negotiations be successful, the relevant liabilities
arose from the acquisition of the Pacific Choice
Group amounting to approximately HK$328,314,000
as at 31 December 2011 would be derecognised
from the consolidated statement of financial
position and the Group would be able to meet in
full its financial obligations as they fall due in the
foreseeable future; and
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 2. ZREMBERRFEHREE »)

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continueq)

(i)  the Group has also continued to explore opportunities
for investments in companies or projects with solid
business platforms and prospects as part of its
strategies for the long-term development.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, upon
successful implementation of these measures, the Group
will have sufficient cash resources to satisfy its future
working capital and other financing requirements. The
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the above
measures will be successfully implemented. Accordingly,
the directors are of the view that it is appropriate to
prepare the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis.

However, should the Group be unable to operate as a
going concern, adjustments might have to be made to the
carrying values of the Group’s assets to state them at their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities
which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and
liabilities to current assets and liabilities, respectively.
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Karce International Holdings Company Limited

LIQUID CRYSTAL ON SILICON
TELEVISION BUSINESS

On 22 May 2008, the Company announced that
Sourcestar Profits Limited (“Sourcestar”), a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
conditional acquisition agreement dated 30 April 2008
with China Eagle Development Limited (“‘China Eagle”)
and Fairtime International Limited (‘Fairtime”) (collectively
referred as to the “Vendors”) for the acquisition of the
entire issued share capital of Pacific Choice Holdings
Limited (“Pacific Choice”) and its shareholders’ loans
outstanding due to the Vendors at an aggregate total
consideration of no more than HK$2,700,000,000 (subject
to adjustments as detailed below) (the “Acquisition
Agreement”).

At the time of acquisition, Pacific Choice was an
investment holding company holding the entire
shareholding interests in Starwick Development Limited
(“Starwick”), Gold Pioneer Enterprises Limited and
Sheenway Limited (“Sheenway”), each of which an
investment holding company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability. & X% (M)A
fR 72 A] United Opto-Electronics (Suzhou) Co., Ltd. (the
“PRC Subsidiary”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of Starwick incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”), was in the course of setting up the
manufacturing base in the PRC for the production of
liquid crystal on silicon (“LCoS”) television and had not
commenced its operations at the time of the acquisition.
Upon completion of the setting-up of the manufacturing
base in the PRC, the planned principal activities of Pacific
Choice and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Pacific Choice Group”) were the design, installation and
manufacturing of high definition projection televisions and
related accessories in the PRC.

As at the date of the acquisition, Sheenway held the

patents as set out in note 17, representing the single
predominant asset of the Pacific Choice Group.
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3. LIQUID CRYSTAL ON SILICON
TELEVISION BUSINESS (continued)

Details of the investment in the Pacific Choice Group are
as follows:

(i)

Acquisition of Pacific Choice Group in
January 2009

As set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 15 January 2009, the Group completed
the acquisition of the Pacific Choice Group on the
same date. Included in the conditions precedent
was the completion of the reorganisation whereby
certain patents and machineries beneficially owned
by &EMA % & BR A A Taiwan Micro Display
Corp. (“TMDC”) be registered under or owned by
the Pacific Choice Group. Despite certain closing
conditions of the acquisition were not fulfilled in
its entirety, they were conditionally waived by the
Company thereof and the acquisition was considered
as completed on 15 January 2009. In the opinion
of the directors, the Vendors and TMDC were
considered as independent to the Group. Details of
intangible asset acquired and goodwill arose in the
above transaction are set out in notes 17 and 18,
respectively.

Under the Acquisition Agreement, the total
consideration was HK$604,616,000 at the date of
acquisition, which consisted of

a) cash in the amount of approximately
HK$25,000,000;

b)  zero-coupon promissory notes due in 2011
issued by the Group with the principal amount
of HK$375,000,000 (“Promissory Notes”);
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3. LIQUID CRYSTAL ON SILICON
TELEVISION BUSINESS (continued)

() Acquisition of Pacific Choice Group in
January 2009 (continued)

o)

zero-coupon convertible bonds due in 2014
issued by the Company (“Tranche 1 Bonds”)
with the principal amount of HK$300,000,000,
of which a downward adjustment in the amount
of US$4,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$31,000,000) would be made if the transfer
of ownership of certain machineries is not
completed within a period of twelve months
from the date of completion of acquisition. The
details are set out below; and

zero-coupon convertible bonds due in 2014
issued by the Company with the aggregate
principal amount of HK$2,000,000,000, which
would only be issued if the profits of the Pacific
Choice Group in certain specific periods during
the eighteen months ended 30 June 2010
reached certain predetermined levels (“Targeted
Profit Levels”).

As set out in note 24, the maturity of the Promissory
Notes were subsequently extended to January 2012
and were matured but not yet settled subsequent to
the end of the reporting period.

In the opinion of the directors, the Targeted
Profit Levels were not reached and none of the
contingently issuable convertible bonds had been
issued during the years ended 31 December 2010
and 2011.

Karce International Holdings Company Limited
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UID CRYSTAL ON SILICON

TELEVISION BUSINESS (continued)

(i)

Acquisition of Pacific Choice Group in
January 2009 (continued)

Since certain of the closing conditions to the
completion of the Acquisition Agreement had
not been fulfilled but conditionally waived by the
Company thereof to proceed completion, all of
the Tranche 1 Bonds were deposited with an
escrow agent pursuant to an escrow agreement
until all conditions (as set out below), specified
in a supplementary agreement to the Acquisition
Agreement signed on 24 October 2008 among
the Vendors, TMDC, and the Company, had been
fulfilled. Such conditions, among others, included the
release of the pledges created on certain machineries
in favour of certain banks in Taiwan to be delivered
to the Pacific Choice Group, and the establishment
of the production plant in the PRC and in normal
operations.

The Vendors agreed to procure the transfer of
the ownership of the relevant machineries to be
completed within twelve months from the date
of completion of acquisition. Once the transfer of
the ownership of the relevant machineries was
completed, the fair values of those machineries
would be recorded in equipment, and the amount
of goodwill arose from the acquisition of Pacific
Choice Group would also be adjusted. In the event
that the transfer of the ownership of the relevant
machineries did not take place within twelve months
from the date of completion of acquisition, the
consideration for the acquisition would be reduced
by US$4,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$31,000,000) pursuant to the Acquisition
Agreement. Details of these were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 15 January 2009.
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™IN (3

3. LIQUID CRYSTAL ON SILICON
TELEVISION BUSINESS (continued)

(i)

(if)

Karce International Holdings Company Limited

Acquisition of Pacific Choice Group in
January 2009 (continued)

During each of the years ended 31 December 2010
and 2011 and up to the date of this report, the
transfer of ownership had not been taken place.
However, the Company is exploring any other
possible alternatives with the Vendors and TMDC
on such transfer and the consideration for the
acquisition had not been adjusted. Details of these
were set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 5 January 2010 and 12 February 2010.

At 31 December 2010 and 2011, all certificates of the
entire Tranche 1 Bonds were still held under escrow.

Deconsolidation of the PRC
Subsidiary and recognition as
available-for-sale investment, and
impairment loss of the Pacific Choice
Remaining Group in December 2009

Due mainly to the non-cooperation of the
management of the PRC Subsidiary, the directors of
the Company had been unable to obtain and access
to the books and records of the PRC Subsidiary after
30 November 2009 and resolved that the Group
no longer had the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of the PRC Subsidiary, and
accordingly the control over the PRC Subsidiary was
lost on that date.
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3. LIQUID CRYSTAL ON SILICON
TELEVISION BUSINESS (continued)

(if)

Deconsolidation of the PRC
Subsidiary and recognition as
available-for-sale investment, and
impairment loss of the Pacific Choice
Remaining Group in December 2009
(continued)

The PRC Subsidiary had therefore been
deconsolidated from the consolidated financial
statements of the Group and recognised as an
available-for-sale investment from 1 December 2009
onwards. The directors of the Company determined
that while it was appropriate to deconsolidate the
PRC Subsidiary on the basis of loss of control, the
Group did retain control over the holding companies
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, including
Sheenway, which holds the patents as set out in note
17.

As the assets of the PRC Subsidiary and the planned
operations thereof predominantly accounted for the
reason for which the Group acquired the Pacific
Choice Group, the loss of control over the PRC
Subsidiary effectively impaired any practical value of
the entire Pacific Choice Group, if any, and therefore,
the directors of the Company considered that the
assets of the entities comprising the Pacific Choice
Group other than the PRC Subsidiary (the “Pacific
Choice Remaining Group”) should be fully impaired
on the same date the Group lost control over the
PRC Subsidiary.

As all of the Group’s operations in production of LCoS
television were carried out by the Pacific Choice
Group, the operating segment of LCoS television
was accordingly classified as discontinued operations
thereafter.
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3. LIQUID CRYSTAL ON SILICON

TELEVISION BUSINESS (continued)

(i) Proposed sale of the Pacific Choice

Group back to the Vendors

As the original production plan had not been realised
and certain terms/ undertakings of the Acquisition
Agreement to be performed on the part of the
Vendors and TMDC had not been performed,
despite the acquisition of Pacific Choice Group
had completed in January 2009, and continued
requests by the Group’s management seeking the
Pacific Choice Group’s assistance and fulfillment of
the agreed terms, the Group issued demand letters
in April 2009, May 2009, March 2010 and January
2011 to the Vendors and the warrantors requesting
them to provide satisfactory explanations and to
suggest remedial actions. No reply had yet been
received from the Vendors or the warrantors.

The Company held a board meeting on 20 April
2010 and resolved that the Company would first
negotiate with the Vendors and the warrantors for
a proposal to sell the Pacific Choice Group back to
the Vendors. Subject to the terms of the proposed
disposal to be agreed, Tranche 1 Bonds and
promissory notes issued to the Vendors and TMDC
as part of the consideration of the acquisition may
be required to be cancelled. Further details are set
out in the Company’s announcement dated 23 April
2010. However, at no time had the Company been
able to come to terms of agreement with the Vendors
and the Company has been actively seeking other
potential purchaser(s) to acquire the Pacific Choice

Group.

Karce International Holdings Company Limited
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UID CRYSTAL ON SILICON

TELEVISION BUSINESS (continued)

(iv)

Proposed disposal of the Disposal
Group

On 25 January 2011, the Company entered into
a conditional sale and purchase agreement for
the disposal of the entire issued share capital of
Sourcestar, whose principal asset was the entire
interest in the Pacific Choice Group (collectively
referred to as the “Disposal Group”) to an
independent third party, Good Choice Development
Ltd. (“Good Choice”) at an aggregate consideration
of HK$637,500,000 (the “Disposal Agreement”).
On the same date, a non-refundable deposit of
HK$50,000,000 had been received by the Company.
The proposed disposal was subject to the approvals
by the shareholders and the Stock Exchange.

Termination of the Disposal
Agreement with Good Choice

On 28 June 2011, the Company received a letter
from the legal advisers acting for Good Choice,
stating that Good Choice would not consider
extending the long stop date of the Disposal
Agreement and the agreement had therefore
lapsed on 30 June 2011. Good Choice demanded
the return of the above non-refundable deposit of
HK$50,000,000 received by the Company on the
basis of, among other matters, the alleged failure on
the part of the Company to use its best endeavors to
procure the fulfillment of all the conditions precedent
to completion of the Disposal Agreement and to
execute all acts and deed as may reaonably be
required by the Stock Exchange.
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3. LIQUID CRYSTAL ON SILICON 3. ERERBERERE »)
TELEVISION BUSINESS (continued)

(v) Termination of the Disposal (v) #1EEEGood Choicer] i Z H

Agreement with Good Choice (continuea)

On 24 August 2011, the Company and the
Purchaser entered into a cancellation agreement,
pursuant to which the parties agreed that the
Disposal Agreement was cancelled to the effect
that the Disposal Agreement would have no effect
whatsoever and release each other from their
respective obligations towards each other as
contained therein. The parties also agreed that a sum
of HK$35,000,000, being part of the above non-
refundable deposit, shall be returned to Good Choice
on the same day as the date of the cancellation
agreement, while the remaining HK$15,000,000 of
the non-refundable deposit shall be forfeited and
retained by the Company and has been recognised
in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2011. Further details of this are set out in note 11.

Under the cancellation agreement, neither of the
parties was entitled to make any claim or bring any
legal proceedings in relation to the Disposal Agreement
in the future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ-Z——F+_-A=+—HLIEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

New and revised HKFRSs applied in the
current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Improvements to HKFRSs issued
in 2010

HKAS 24 (as
revised in 2009)

Related Party Disclosures

Amendments to
HKAS 32

Amendments to
HK(IFRIC) — Int 14

Classification of Rights Issues

Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement

HK(IFRIC) - Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities

with Equity Instruments

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 B2 -Z——F+_-A=+—HLIEE

4. APPLICATION OF NEW AND

REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not

yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards, amendments and interpretation that
have been issued but are not yet effective:

C 78 #0 {B s R &£ XAV 5] R AR RT

BRUBHREEA

A 3 R AR TS AR B R
B3] RAS S RIS AT R2 TR

Amendments to Disclosures — Transfers of Financial ERUBRELEETR HE-ESEepEE
HKFRS 7 Assets' (1BETA)

Amendments to

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities?
Mandatory Effective Date of

BRMBHRELEETHR

RE-AHeREER
TRARE

BB B MEEE

HKFRS 7 HKFRS 9 and Transition F95% (BFTAR) 5% H5% 1l A R R GBE
and HKFRS 9 Disclosures® 5=

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments? BEMBRELENFNR ERIAS

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial BERMBHREENFEI0R HFEMBRE

Statements?
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements? BEMBRELENF115,  ERZH?
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other BEAMBRSENF12S BREAHMEROER
Entities?

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement? BAMBRESENFEIR ATEETE?

Amendments to Presentation of ltems of Other RS ERF1R 2N EmEEB AR
HKAS 1 Comprehensive Income® (1B3TA)

Amendments to Deferred Tax — Recovery of B ERE 125 IEERIE - Yol 4E
HKAS 12 Underlying Assets* (BRI A) BE

HKAS 19 (as revised Employee Benefits? BEGEERFE195 EERA?
in 2011) (ZE——F KB

HKAS 27 (as revised Separate Financial Statements? BEGERE27TH T8 37 B 7 K2
in 2011) (ZE——F KB

HKAS 28 (as revised  Investments in Associates and BRI F285 REE DB RAE DA
in 2011) Joint Ventures? (ZE——FKEFT) HRE?

Amendments to Offsetting Financial Assets and B R F325 BECREERESRE
HKAS 32 Financial Liabilities® SCHEN) {&e

HK(FRIC) — Int 20
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Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine?
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #EZ-Z——F+-_A=+—HI&EE

4. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not
yet effective (continued)

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2011.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2015.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2012.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2012.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes the requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 B2 -Z——F+_-A=+—HLIEE

4. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continuea)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

HKFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets
that are within the scope of HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments. Recognition and Measurement to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair
value. Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at
their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may
make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment
(that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive
income, with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ-Z——F+_-A=+—HLIEE

4. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (continueq)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continuea)

o The most significant effect of HKFRS 9 regarding
the classification and measurement of financial
liabilities relates to the presentation of changes in the
fair value of a financial liability (designated as at fair
value through profit or loss) attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability. Specifically, under
HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities that are designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to
a financial liability’s credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Previously, under HKAS
39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value
of the financial liability designated as at fair value
through profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

Based on the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities at 31 December 2011, the directors anticipate
that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the future will have impact
on amounts reported in respect of the Group’s available-
for-sale investments. Regarding the Group’s available-
for-sale investments, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review
has been completed.
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4. APPLICATION OF NEW AND

REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in either
a single statement or in two separate but consecutive
statements. However, the amendments to HKAS 1
require additional disclosures to be made in the other
comprehensive income section such that items of other
comprehensive income are grouped into two categories:
(a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss; and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss when specific conditions are met. Income
tax on items of other comprehensive income is required to
be allocated on the same basis.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The
presentation of items of other comprehensive income will
be modified accordingly when the amendments are applied
in the future accounting periods.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised Standards
and Interpretations will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
rE R ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ-Z——F+_-A=+—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based
on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods.

The principal accounting policies set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved
where the Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition
or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated on consolidation.
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Karce International Holdings Company Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueq)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold in the normal course of business, net of
discounts.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and title has passed.

Equipment

Equipment is stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of equipment, less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ-Z——F+_-A=+—HLEE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 5. TESTEE &)

POLICIES (continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their costs).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset
is derecognised.

HE

TE A 6R R 1) BA 75 P 8 B9 48 K BB 20 L ez K [ e
BETAEANBO>BEAREAN -FAAER
QRO BREEHLD -

EEEEREABA

REMONRABEREAREOFRERRHA
¥

BILEE
RESOINBZETEEE

EBAMBZ B EELERE D HER
NEEZEFEENKRE APz A FERR (K
BAEKA)

RIZHERE BRENEAFHIELEE
T2 B 7R R 51 8 35 R AT 1) R AT R E & 1B 5
FR-BREAERFHZELEEREGRA
ERFERAERET AR

BREENLEXRREAEHEETGER
ARG BN R b 42 L HERR - R IETEREY
BERELE/ W MBI AL EMEHRIEF
MEZEERAENEZRETE IRZEER
IFFER R IR s AR A RERR o

—ER-—FFH EREXEEERLA

68



69

Karce International Holdings Company Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueq)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-
out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ-Z——F+_-A=+—HLIEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 5. TESFEE »)
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued) E@MIE &)
Financial assets (continued) THEE (&)
Effective interest method BERRARE

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees, points paid or received that form
an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. At each end of the reporting period
subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade receivables and bank balances and
cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ-Z——%+_-A=+—HLEE

Karce International Holdings Company Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueq)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-
maturity investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period. Changes in fair
value are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in investment revaluation reserve, until
the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to
be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked
to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
instruments, they are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at each end of the reporting period
subsequent to initial recognition (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ-Z——F+_-A=+—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have been impacted.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or
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e breach of contracts, such as default or delinquency in o  EA WAREANIEEEERE XA
interest or principal payments; or %3k

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

° disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of trade and bills receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period and observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

°
—

ERAB A EEEBEXMBEMR: 3

s FRUMBRBEEHZCRMEEZERETS
K e

A HEERAREMS  ZREZAFEX
BEEHERERATDRERBELTBE
e

SRETENEREE (PIMEKRE SFIA)M
S A EFENGFELRENEESRINES
—HRERE - ESREGRARERERES
HER R E M B E R 618 A & B8 WRE
o HEABHFHEEHNTENRBESR
P& AN~ B SR St [ AL IR i ER PR R 3 (B
EUHRIBEAREEENBRYE) -

—ER-—FFH EREXEEERLA

72



73

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ-Z——F+_-_A=+—HLEE

5. FEGBE (#)

POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continueq)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
in the period in which the impairment takes place.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ-Z——F+_-A=+—HLIEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 5. FESFEE &
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued) @I A (&)
Financial assets (continued) THEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) SRMEENRE(£Z)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair
value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in investment
revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueq)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continuea)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Convertible bonds issued by the Company

Convertible bonds issued by the Company that contain both
the liability and conversion option components are classified
separately into respective items on initial recognition
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instruments. Conversion option that will be settled by
the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component
is determined using the prevailing market interest of similar
non-convertible debts. The difference between the gross
proceeds of the issue of the convertible bonds and the fair
value assigned to the liability component, representing the
conversion option for the holder to convert the bonds into
equity, is included in equity (convertible bonds reserve).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

FESHEE &)

Financial instruments (continued) €@IA (&)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued) THEBRKRAE &)

Convertible bonds issued by the Company (continued)
In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component,
representing the option to convert the liability component into
ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in convertible
bonds reserve until the embedded option is exercised
(in which case the balance stated in convertible bonds
reserve will be transferred to share premium). Where the
option remains unexercised at the expiry date, the balance
stated in convertible bonds reserve will be released to the
accumulated losses. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the equity component are
charged directly to equity. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible bonds using the effective interest method.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade payables, other
payables, amount due to a shareholder and promissory
notes are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.
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Karce International Holdings Company Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueq)

Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise
the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and
recognises an associated liability. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) and a defined contribution provident
fund under Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance
(the “ORSO Scheme”) are recognised as expenses when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ-Z——F+_-A=+—HLIEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
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period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueq)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of the exchange
reserve. Such exchange differences are reclassified to
profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is
disposed of.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable
to the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit
or loss. In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a
subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are reattributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on
or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of
that foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in the translation reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 5. TEGFBE (#)
POLICIES (continued)
Taxation BiiE

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised as differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.
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Karce International Holdings Company Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueq)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.
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Karce International Holdings Company Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueq)

Impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 5, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING 6. EESHHABHRMETFIBERE
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES ZEBRIR (#)

OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continueq)

Critical judgments in applying the entity’s
accounting policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Deconsolidation of the PRC Subsidiary and
recognition as an available-for-sale investment

Notes 3 and 19 describe that the Group has been unable
to exercise its power to govern the financial and operating
activities of the PRC Subsidiary and the PRC Subsidiary
had therefore been deconsolidated from the consolidated
financial statements of the Company on 1 December 2009.
The PRC Subsidiary is recognised by the Company as an
available-for-sale investment since then.

In making their judgment, the directors of the Company
considered the detailed criteria for the consolidation of an
entity as set out in HKAS 27 (Revised) “Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements” issued by the HKICPA.
In light of the problems identified, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group’s ownership
in the PRC Subsidiary does not constitute control and
accordingly, deconsolidated the PRC Subsidiary from the
consolidated financial statements of the Company on 1
December 2009.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continueq)

Critical judgments in applying the entity’s
accounting policies (continued)

Going concern basis of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements

As disclosed in note 2, the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis. The
appropriateness of the going concern basis is assessed
after taking into consideration all relevant available information
about the future of the Group, including proposed measures
as described in note 2 and cash flow projections for the
year ending 31 December 2012. Such forecasts and
projections about the future inherently involve uncertainties.
Actual results could differ significantly and hence render the
adoption of the going concern basis not appropriate.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated reversal of impairment of intangible
asset in 2010 and impairment of intangible
asset in 2011

The Group tests whether intangible asset which has finite
useful live has suffered any impairment whenever there
is any indication that the asset may have been impaired.
The recoverable amount of the intangible asset has been
determined based on the higher of its (i) value in use,
which have been estimated using discounted cash flow
method, and (i) fair value less costs to sell.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continueq)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continueq)

Estimated reversal of impairment of intangible
asset in 2010 and impairment of intangible
asset in 2011 (continued)

As set out in note 3, upon the loss of control over the
PRC Subsidiary in 2009, the directors of the Company
considered that no future cash flows were expected to
be derived from the Pacific Choice Group and the value
in use of the intangible asset was therefore estimated to
be zero. As set out in notes 3(iv) and 17, a reversal of the
impairment loss amounting to HK$50,000,000 has been
recognised in respect of intangible asset during the year
ended 31 December 2010 determined by the directors
based on the amount of non-refundable deposit received
in January 2011 for the proposed disposal of the Disposal
Group.

As further set out in notes 3(v) and 17, upon the
termination of the Disposal Agreement during the
year ended 31 December 2011, there is no binding
sale agreement of the intangible asset nor any active
market the directors may be aware of, the fair value
less cost to sell for the intangible asset is zero based
on the best information available that the Group could
obtain at the end of the reporting period. The directors
therefore consider that the then carrying amount of the
intangible asset at HK$50,000,000 immediately prior to
the termination of the Disposal Agreement exceeded
the recoverable amount and an impairment loss of
HK$50,000,000 was recognised in profit or loss during the
year. Where the actual future cash flows are different from
the amounts estimated above, a reversal of impairment
loss may arise in future years.

EESHHERATTITEERE
ZEEREF#)

T RERZEZETERR (2)

—E-FFEFEEEMBER=
ERBEERES A RE (%)

B ST E R TN FEHREWHEA
KEES R ARAREERE %EHJWJETA
it Pacific Choiceft B & 4 R KR & 7 @ L
ﬂﬁ;ﬁéz{fﬁﬁ{ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁﬁoafﬁzzuwuzsov)
M7THE BHEZZT—ZSF+-A=+—HL
FE- E‘ﬁ%ﬁ/ﬁﬁz/ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁi%IE|50,000,000
‘;%ﬁaﬁéﬁﬁz%ﬁmﬁ%%@ﬁ%ft%%ﬁ%ﬁ

EEMR = ——F— A —HKERZA A

a@*é%%ﬁ?ﬁzmo

ISV R17TE— T E - REE =T ——
FT_A=+t—HLEFEKRIEHEHZERE &
MANR 2B EEHE R NEEME
ERREABRERMS  EFREERFERH
EXAAST  NEASBERBREHRATIRG 2
REERET At EERE BEFEEER
Z BRE{E50,000,0007 TR B & IFHE E iz
A A 3@ 7] YR [B] < 58 - B Rk (B /E5 #850,000,000/%8
TERFREERZNER  WEBRRKE SR
B EilibErSEEEE  AREE BR[O Al 68
AR IREF NEAE ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Karce International Holdings Company Limited

REVENUE

Revenue from continuing operations represents revenue
arising from the sales of conductive silicon rubber keypads
for the year.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Executive Directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker
(“CODM”), for the purpose of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of
goods sold.

The Group currently has only one operating segment,
namely conductive silicon rubber keypads, which engages
in the business of trading of conductive silicon rubber
keypads and associated products.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the directors
have determined to discontinue the LCoS television
business and accordingly the LCoS television segment,
being a separate operating segment for HKFRS 8 reporting
purposes, constitutes a discontinued operation of the
Group.

Annual Report 2011
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. #EfEFR (&)
Segment revenue and results PR R EE

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and LT RASEREEDHE D 2 W REED

results by operating segments:

For the year ended 31 December 2011

w7

BE-_F-——F+-A=t—-HLEE

Continuing Discontinued
operations operations
& # 1k
Conductive
silicon rubber LCoS
keypads and television and
segment total segment total Total
BEEELE LCoS
RER BRK
aWEF oA =
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TET FTHET
Revenue - External sales Wi - SPEBSHE 5,025 - 5,025
Segment profit 75 &b A1 836 - 836
Unallocated income (expenses) RO EUWA (BIXZ)HER :
items:
Central administration costs and RRITEHEKARESH
directors’ salaries (7,632) - (7,632)
Other loss H b Es1a (5) - (5)
Impairment loss recognised EHRRELEERERBE
in respect of intangible asset - (50,000) (50,000)
Gain on forfeiture of the deposit 72 U5 i & Sourcestarz
received for disposal of Blize v as
Sourcestar - 15,000 15,000
Finance costs & B A (40,266) - (40,266)
Loss before taxation FRELAIE 18 (47,067) (35,000) (82,067)
—E-—FFR EREXSEFRAT
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq) 8.

Segment revenue and results (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2010

N

DEEFE (2

DERERFEE (&)
BE-—T-—TF+-—A=+—BIEE

N

Continuing Discontinued
operations operations
ST Ak
Conductive
silicon rubber LCoS
keypads and television and
segment total segment total Total
BEERB LCoS
RER B
DEEE SEEF A&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR THx THx
Revenue - External sales Wi - IEPEE 26,524 - 26,524
Segment profit pa= PAIDE 1,273 = 1,273
Unallocated income (expenses) RO EUWA (BIx%)HER :
items:
Central administration costs and FRITBKARESH
directors’ salaries (6,356) - (6,356)
Reversal of impairment loss REREERRZ
recognised in respect of BB B 18 B [
intangible asset - 50,000 50,000
Gain on extension of maturity of ERANZBEEHA 2
promissory notes L& 11,908 - 11,908
Finance costs A& KA (36,445) - (36,445)
(Loss) profit before taxation Br¥iAl (B518) &R (29,620) 50,000 20,380

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described

RanBz et RREAEE SR BE (it

PAHEES) 48R

ZaNkviieN

73 &b M e & D B

B AT ERER 2 )

in note 5. Segment profit represents profit earned by
each segment without absorption of unallocated income
(expense) items, details of which are set out above. This
is the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment.
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continved) 8. oEER &)

Segment assets and liabilities THEERAERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and NTRASEZREEDHE D CEERARZ
liabilities by operating segment: DT
2011 2010
A i
Continuing Continuing Discontinued
operations operations operations
BEREEY FELEER  RIELE:H
Conductive Conductive
silicon rubber silicon rubber LCoS
keypads and keypads and television and
segment total segment total segment total Total
EEREGBRR SSEGBRE  LCSERK
kAHE Rp#ast AEaE ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET TET TET
Segment Assets PHEE
Conductive silicon rubber BERBBRENH
keypads segment 1,864 5,925 - 5,925
LCoS television LCoSE R - - 50,000 50,000
Total segment assets BHHEE 1,364 5,925 50,000 55,925
Bank balances and cash % TEHRAE 19,293 15,856 - 15,856
Other unallocated assets HEt R PR EE 5,710 436 = 436
Consolidated assets GRAE 26,867 22,217 50,000 72,217
Segment Liabilities AHERE
Conductive siicon rubber keypads segment and ~ EERZBIZRE D L L
total segment liabilities BrHaE 1,900 1,196 - 1,196
Unallocated liabllties KHMAE 331,824 302,441 - 302,441
Consolidated liabilties FRaf 333,724 303,637 - 303,637

—E-——FEH SEEEEEERAT 90
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ-Z——%+_-A=+—HLEE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq)

Segment assets and liabilities (continuea)

No analysis for the Group’s assets and liabilities
attributable to discontinued operations as at 31 December
2011 has been presented since all of such operations have
been deconsolidated/impaired. As at 31 December 2010,
the assets attributable to LCoS television represents the
assets whose impairment loss was reversed during the
year then ended, as set out in note 17.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than equipment, available-for-sale investments,
prepayments and bank balances and cash; and

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than accruals and other payables, amount due to
a shareholder, promissory notes, convertible bonds
and deferred tax liabilities.

Karce International Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2011
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq) 8.

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 December 2011

—f——FTZA=t-BLEE

—=

N

DEEFE (2

Hit 2 5BE R

i3

Discontinued

E-E——F+-A=1+—HLEE

Continuing operations operations
#IE
BESEER REER
Conductive LCoS
silicon rubber television
keypads and and segment
segment total  Unallocated total Consolidated
HEERE LCoS
BER ERR
WA AAE A A RE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TET TET TET
Amounts included in the measure of STED R
segment profit: B A
Impairment loss recognised on B ZEIGRIBRER
trade receivables REER (321) = - (321)
Reversal of impairment loss recognised on #E 5B IEHR
trade receivables BIEEERE 2,837 - - 2,837
Amounts regularly provided to the CODM but ~ EHiIRM# T = ELE®
not included in the measure of segment REBEGENT
profit or loss or segment assets: BaknHEER
WS R ZHE:
Impairment loss recognised in respect of HEVEERR
intangible asset VEREY B! - - (50,000) (50,000)
Gain on forfeiture of the deposit received for R EMB AT 2
disposal of subsidiaries BliRE 2 W - - 15,000 15,000
Additions to non-current REERBEE
assets (Note) (FFsE) - 10 - 10
Depreciation of equipment HEHE - 6 - 6
Finance costs RERAK - 40,266 - 40,266
—E——FFR RERBEEEFRAA
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Karce International Holdings Company Limited

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuea) 8. #EER #)
Other segment information (continued) Hith o ‘E.‘B &8 #)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE_ZT—ZTEFT+_A=1T—HILFE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
#1E
FRERER S
Conductive LCoS
silicon rubber television
keypads and and segment
segment total Unallocated total  Consolidated
BEELR L.CoS
"R BRR
AEEE Sl AEEE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THT T T THT
Amounts included in the measure of SFENBEMAEEZ
segment profit; A
Impairment loss recognised on 8 5 EUNTIARR
trade receivables REEE (2,030) - - (2,030)
Reversal of impairment loss recognised 8 5 EUNTIERER
on trade receivables BEBERD 1 - - 1
Amounts regularly provided to the CODM EHRETEFELER
but not included in the measure of REBEGTENH
segment profit or loss or segment assets: BRdsHEER
ik S SR
Reversal of impairment loss recognised HEVEERR
in respect of intangible asset REBERD - - 50,000 50,000
Gain on extension of maturity of ERAKZEIEAZ
promissory notes Wrzs - 11,908 - 11,908
Additions to non-current assets NEFRBEE - 21 - 21
Depreciation of equipment HEHE - 4 - 4
Finance costs MERK - 36,445 - 36,445

Note: Non-current assets exclude financial instruments.
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq)

Information about major customers

Revenues from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are

TEHER (#)
ERIERF2ER

RIBEFEE BAEBEHEEEBHKITEE
BI0%M AR

as follows:
Year ended 31 December
BE+=-A=1+—HLEE
2011 2010
—g——% —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TAIT
Customer A EFA 1,547 7,937
Customer B! EFB 927 =
Customer C BFC 680 38 FA2N/A2
Customer D EFD T F2N/A2 5,180
Customer E BFE 138 FI2N/A? 3,234
Customer F =FEF T IE F2N/A2 2,858
3,154 19,209

U The Group derived no revenue from Customer B during the
year ended 31 December 2010.

2 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of
the total sales of the Group.

All of the above amounts are contributed from conductive
silicon rubber keypads.

| RE-F-TFI-ASt-HILFE A%
0 4 2 2 R A B2 it
PR A A R E R R AR 0% ©

AEFBSBOMEEERBREMER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ-Z——%+_-A=+—HLEE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq) 8. oHER =&

Geographical information HEER

The Group’s operations are mainly located in Hong Kong AEBREETZEMNEBRFRH-

and the PRC.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s TRIEZEFPHEMEDTASE 2 W (W E
revenue by geographical location of customers, irrespective T REYRR) kiR E E & 5 T HIER
of the origin of the goods and information about its non- EEEZEF

current assets by geographical location of the assets.

Revenue from external customers
from continuing and
discontinued operations
Year ended 31 December

REFESEELR
HIEREEE
IERE P W R
BEt+t-A=1+—HLEE
2011 2010
—E2——F —E—TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FBT
Sales of conductive silicon HESTHBRBILE
rubber keypads
Hong Kong 0 2,438 7,691
PRC H 2,587 18,833
5,025 26,524
Non-current assets
kRBEE
2011 2010
—E——F —E—TF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T 7T
Hong Kong BB 16 50,017
Note: Non-current assets exclude financial instruments. MieE: FERDEETREESHIE-
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9. FINANCE COSTS

9. miE A

Continuing operations and
consolidated

BEREEBRES
2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHB T T

Effective interests on: UTREZERFE

Convertible bonds Al MR ES 28,194 24,604
Promissory notes R R 12,072 11,841
40,266 36,445

10. INCOME TAX CREDIT

10. FRIEHRER

Continuing operations and
consolidated

BEREEBRES
2011 2010
e —z-=%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T T
Deferred tax credit — EET IR % -
current year (note 26) AEE (HIFE26) 6,644 4,049

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years. No provision for
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the consolidated
financial statements since the Group has no assessable
profits in Hong Kong for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.
No provision for PRC income tax had been made in the
consolidated financial statements as none of the PRC
subsidiaries had any assessable profits for both years.

BB NS T A & 6 2 2 fh 51 FEsR B Al 2
16.5%:t H - AR AKRERMEFENETEL
E ORISR D E A - Bt W R 4R & B R
AEL BB NS BB

REFBEEEMSHE ([EEREHRE]) R
EEMBHAERAR - BB R 7R M IE
FREZHER25% - AR AT BB A RR
P fIE F 2 A B SRS A B R B A - iR
RERE B F R AL B P15 A (F B4

—ER-——FFH EREXEEERLA
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #EZ-Z——F+-A=+—HI&E

10. INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued)

11.

Karce International Holdings Company Limited

10. FISHE R &)

The income tax credit for the year can be reconciled RAFEEAN EHERHEEEEZHERRA
to the (loss) profit per the consolidated statement of (B8 &S FHERIT
comprehensive income as follows:
2011 2010
—F——F —ZET-ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT T T
(Loss) profit before taxation: FRBLAT (518 ) A -
Continuing operations FECEER (47,067) (29,620)
Discontinued operations gl “%ﬁ“‘ (35,000) 50,000
(82,067) 20,380
Tax at domestic tax rate of 16.5% BB E16.5% (ZE—FF:
(2010: 16.5%) 16.5% )it & Z’WE (13,541) 3,363
Tax effect of expenses not deductible N AJ 1% sz H 2 Tl 5 57 &
for tax purposes 9,511 3,141
Tax effect of income not taxable for BRI 2 G2
tax purposes (2,475) (10,227)
Effect of tax losses not recognised RERGIBEBE 2 ZE - 3
Utilisation of tax losses previously not BB 2 Bl (& R MR 2 BB E 18
recognised (139) (829)
Tax credit for the year FEHBEESR (6,644) (4,049)

The domestic tax rate in the jurisdiction where the

EE HEARBASERE RS AERAER

operations of the Group is substantively based is used. 2 B A FE o
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 11. R UERE XK
The (loss) gain from the discontinued operations of LCoS KB FTLCOSEREM « #1275 (BE)
television business comprise: W B
2011 2010
—E——F —ET-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TAIT
Impairment loss recognised in respect Bt 2 & = FE R 2 i (B B 18
of intangible asset (50,000) -
Gain on forfeiture of the deposit 7% U H & Sourcestar 2
received for disposal of Sourcestar B R e 2 W 15,000 -
Reversal of impairment loss REEREERR 2RERIE
recognised in respect of intangible
asset - 50,000
(35,000) 50,000

Details of the above amounts are set out in note 3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ-Z——F+_-A=+—HLIEE

12. (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

12. ZFE (BiR) =25

Continuing operations and
consolidated

BEKEEBREE
2011 2010
—E——fF —T—EF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET T 7T
(Loss) profit for the year has been AEE (EE) M &Mk
arrived at after charging (crediting): (5T A) TPITE B &S
Directors’ remuneration (note 13) EEME (FIFE13) 959 750
Other staff costs Hi8 TR
— Salaries and other benefits - Fre kEAmET 833 495
— Retirement benefits scheme - RREFIFT &I 3K
contribution 34 24
867 519
Total staff costs BT KA 1,826 1,269
Auditors’ remuneration 1% B AT Bl & 880 780
Depreciation of equipment REITE 6 4
Cost of inventories recognised as BRERIZI ZFEXAR
expense 6,232 22,370
Management fee (included in ERBR (Gt ATTE
administrative expense, note) Fs o MIsE) 819 899
Loss on disposal of equipment HEREERE (FTAEAM
(included in other gain or loss) WSk B 1) 5 =
(Reversal of impairment loss) HE ZEBGRIRFER Z
impairment loss recognised in OREEE#EE) REBE
respect of trade receivables (FFAEM U EE) -
(included in other gain or loss), net R (2,516) 2,029

Note: The above amount is paid to Man Lee Management

Limited, a company beneficially held and significantly

influenced by an entity which is also a shareholder that has

significant influence over the Company, for the Group’s

share of administrative and management services fees

for an office premise, included in which an amount of
HK$480,000 (2010: HK$492,000) represents the share of
the lease payments paid under an operating lease for the

year.

MisE: AEFEDXNTFTENEERER AR (—RR

BUHARRBABEANENZRRAZEEE R
BAEWREEAYEZ DR EARNEEAE
WMAEMEZITBRREERBE MZERE
rh 5 27480,000/% 7T ( — F — T 4F : 492,000/
T ZHRBRDEAFELEHANETZEN
e
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #EZ-Z——F+-A=+—HI&E

13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight
(2010: ten) directors were as follow:

(@) Directors’ remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2011

13. EEFME RS HES

ENXENTNLE(ZE-—FF: ) EFE
(VAN

() EEEHM

Other emoluments

BE-_Z——F+-A=+—HILFE

Hit# &
Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other scheme
Fee benefits contributions Total
Hek RKEF
Name of Director EEER ok HiEH AN Ch
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Pt 5 TET TET TET TET
Executive directors: HIEE:
Mr. Sun Ying Chung ETREAE - - - -
Mr. Chan Sung Wai BReBiE 75 - 2 77
Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph &SR EAE 325 - 12 337
400 - 14 414
Non-executive directors: FRTES:
Mr. Lee Kwok Leung FERLE 120 - - 120
Mr. Yang Yiu Chong, BIRREE
Ronald Jeffrey 120 - - 120
240 - - 240
Independent non-executive BAUFRITES:
directors:
Mr. Lum Pak Sum WEZREE 110 - - 110
Mr. Law Chun Choi RERELAE @) 100 - - 100
Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick BRERE @) 95 - - 95
305 - - 305
Total emoluments ol R 945 - 14 959
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #EZ-Z——&+-A=+—HI&EE

13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continuec)

(@) Directors’ remuneration (continuea)
For the year ended 31 December 2010

13. EEFMEBESHEER »)

(a)

EEHMW &)
BE—T-—T&t-—A=t—HIFE

Other emoluments
Hiofe
Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other scheme
Fee benefits contributions Total
He Rk RNTEF
Name of Director EELR e HA &R AR B
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
k3 BT AT FTHET FTHBT
Executive directors: HITEE:
Mr. Sun Ying Chung ETREE = = = =
Mr. Chan Sung Wai BRRELE - - - -
Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph ~ ESFHELAE 325 - 12 337
325 - 12 337
Non-executive directors: FRTES:
Mr. Lee Kwok Leung FRREE 120 - - 120
Mr. Yang Yiu Chong, BRREE
Ronald Jeffrey 120 - - 120
240 - - 240
Independent non-executive BUFMIES:
directors:
Mr. Lum Pak Sum WEREE 60 - - 60
Mr. Law Chun Choi BERLAE (@) 42 - - 42
Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick BRERE (@) 42 - - 42
Mr. Ho Lic Ki AHEEE (b) 13 - - 13
Mr. Chan Siu Wing, Raymond BRIk &8 %L 4 © 16 - - 16
173 - - 173
Total emoluments e Ok 738 = 12 750

5K EREXEEERLA
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #EZ-Z——F+-A=+—HI&E

13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continueq)

(@) Directors’ remuneration (continued)

Notes:

(a) Mr. Law Chun Choi and Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick were
appointed on 22 April 2010.

(b) Mr. Ho Lic Ki was appointed on 14 January 2010 and
resigned on 9 April 2010.

(c) Mr. Chan Siu Wing, Raymond was appointed on 2
April 2009 and resigned on 7 April 2010.

No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office and no
directors have waived any emoluments in both years.

(b) Five highest paid employees

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, two (2010: three) were directors of the
Company whose emoluments are included in the

13. EEFMEBESHEER »)

(a)

EEHMW &)
P 5 -

@ FEPEERERREER_ZT-—TF
MA=-+=-—BEZfF-

b) AMHEEER-_Z-—ZF-—A+HEBEE
ZEIRN_Z-TFHANABE-

© BEREER-ZZZNFHA_BER
FXER =T -—ZFMOA-HEHE-

RzMEFE AEEREETEEHS
ERBREMASIRMAREER Z £
BRI E AT BEEMETATM -

IfuBREFHES

EARBANSEFALS B (=F
—TF ) ARARNESE BE M
SWBREX-BT=fr (ZFT—FF:

disclosure above. The emoluments of the remaining M) AL ZBEn T :
three (2010: two) individuals were as follows:

2011 2010
—E——F —ET-FF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FHET FAEIT
Salaries and other benefits e R EMEF 833 398
Retirement benefits RIREF 34 19
867 417

The emoluments of each of the three (2010: two)
highest paid employee were within the band of nil to
HK$1,000,000 during each of the two years ended
31 December 2011.

101 Karce International Holdings Company Limited ~ Annual Report 2011

HE—_ZT——F+-_A=+—HItMEK
EFN BTN =(UEE(ZZ—ZT&F:
ML) & B 2 B4 J5 7 F = & 1,000,000
BT e




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #EZ-Z——&+-A=+—HI&EE

14. DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or declared during each of the
year ended 31 December 2010 and 2011. The directors
do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
2011 (2010: nil).

15. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@) For continuing and discontinued
operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)
earnings per share from continuing and discontinued
operations attributable to the owners of the
Company is based on the following data:

14. R 2

HE_ZT - ZTFER_FT——F+A=1+—
BIEEFATERNREREMBKES - ERL
TEZRN -_ZE——F2RXHPRE(ZZT—F
F M) o

15. SR (E#E) &R

() MIFECLEEBRRILEEE
BmsE
KATHEEARERFECLERRE L
s SRERREE (E5E) &
TR TIBEHE -

2011 2010
—E——F T —EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T T
(Loss) profit (E18) =R
(Loss) profit for the purpose of  BLEtEFAEAR (E51E)
basic (loss) earnings ARz (EE)mF
per share (75,423) 24,429
Effects of dilutive potential BEESTER  FE:
ordinary shares:
Interest on convertible AT AR E A B2
bonds (net of tax) (B FRIE) 23,542 20,544
(Loss) profit for the purpose of  BLat E S # H (E518)
diluted (loss) earnings BFz (EE)&F
per share (51,881) 44,973

—ER-——FFH EREXEEERLA
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #EZ-Z——F+-A=+—HI&E

15. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

(continued)

(a)

Karce International Holdings Company Limited

For continuing and discontinued

15. SR (BB B #)

(@ MEACEXRBRRILEER

operations (continued) BmMs &)
2011 2010
Number of shares BB EE —E——F —E-TF
’000 ‘000
¥ iR F %
Number of ordinary shares for MATEEREARES (FHE)
the purposes of basic and BAz & EREE
diluted (loss) earnings per
share 702,356 702,356

The computation of diluted (loss) earnings
per share from continuing and discontinued
operations does not assume the conversion of the
Company’s outstanding convertible bonds since
their exercise would result in decrease in loss
per share from continuing operations for the year
ended 31 December 2011 and 2010.

From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per
share from continuing operations attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the following
data:

RRARAHARTEAIRRESSET
ERERBE_FT——FR_F—FF
T A=+t BULFEREBFELEE
B BREBRRD it Rt EREH
BREXBERIEREXH 2 BREE
(BR)BNKYBERREFRZEES -

b) REFBELEREK

ARARHEBEANEREBBERLEXBZER
EARANBEBERTVIZ T BB E

2011 2010
—E——fF —T—EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T3 7T
Loss Fi=]
Loss for the purpose of METESRENEBEZEIE
basic loss per share (40,423) (25,571)
Effects of dilutive potential VB T A AR 2.
ordinary shares:
Interest on convertible AR EHF B
bonds (net of tax) (FOBRFRIE) 23,542 20,544
Loss for the purpose of diluted — BtatE G E B E1E 2 E18
loss per share (16,881) (5,027)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ-Z——F+_-A=+—HLIEE

15. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

(continued)

(b) From continuing operations (continuea)

The denominators used are the same as those
detailed above for both basic and diluted (loss)
earnings per share for continuing and discontinued
operations.

From discontinued operations

Basic and diluted loss per share from the
discontinued operations is HK4.98 cents per share
(2010: basic and diluted earnings per share of
HK7.12 cents per share), based on loss for the year
from the discontinued operations attributable to the
owners of the Company of HK$35,000,000 (2010:
profit of HK$50,000,000) and the denominators
detailed above for basic and diluted (loss) earnings
per share for continuing and discontinued
operations.

15. SR (BB B #)

b) REFELEEL )

FRRADEE XA ERSERER
BREIERERBE 2 BRERLEE (B
B)RMAAEMER -

REK R

RERIECREXEBCBRERAREEES
BAEEBR4BEN(ZE—ZF: 8K
EARNEBEERT7A28)  TIBREBEARARD
ABAEABERERIEEEXEBFTERS
835,000,000 L (ZZF —ZF : B 7
50,000,000/ 7t ) & Eali ghat BB
EBRRIESEEB 2 BRERNREE
(BE) BNz HFE -

—ER-——FFH EREXEEERLA
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16. EQUIPMENT 16. X1E
Furniture,
fixtures and
office equipment
B -HER
WARRME
HK$’000
T T
cosT o
At 1 January 2010 RZE—FTF—H—H =
Additions NE 21
At 31 December 2010 N—_E—ZEF+_-_A=+—H 21
Additions INE 10
Disposals e (7)
At 31 December 2011 R-—ZE——&F+=-—HA=+—H 24
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2010 R-—ZE—ZF—HF—H =
Provided for the year N A 4
At 31 December 2010 N-—EB—T&+-FA=+—8H 4
Provided for the year Nl 6
Eliminated on disposal = @)
At 31 December 2011 R-—ZE——&F+=-—HA=+—H 8
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2011 R-—ZT——&E+=-—HA=+—8 16
At 31 December 2010 RZE—ZTF+=—A=+—H 17
The above items of equipment are depreciated on a straight- PR EIE B &S RERER T FIR25%7
line basis, after taking into account of their residual values, at RLBEBGETE -

the rate of 25% per annum.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ-Z——F+_-A=+—HLIEE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSET

7. B EE

Patents
=R
HK$’000
T T
CARRYING VALUE BREE

At 1 January 2010 RZE—ZTF—H— -

Reversal of impairment loss recognised BEEE P ER 2 UZTEJ%TE
in profit or loss 50,000
At 31 December 2010 RZZE—ZFF+-_HA=+—H 50,000
Impairment loss recognised in profit or loss BatERZREESE (50,000)
At 31 December 2011 R-ZE——F+=-A=+—H -

As set out in note 3, the Group acquired the Pacific Choice
Group during the year ended 31 December 2009, the fair
value of the intangible asset was valued at HK$668,000,000
by Messrs. B.l. Appraisals Limited (“B.l.
independent qualified professional valuers, at the date of
acquisition (i.e. 15 January 2009) based on discounted cash

flow method.

The intangible asset comprises of patents and/or patents
application in the PRC, Taiwan and the United States relating
to micro-display elements and manufacturing of LCoS

televisions and related components.

The cost of the Group’s intangible asset was to be amortised
on a straight-line basis over the estimated remaining useful
life of ten years. No amortisation is made before it is fully
impaired during the year ended 31 December 2009 since

Appraisal”’),

i%f‘JJEPﬁO

the LCoS television business has not yet commenced.

Y

l U B% Pacific Choices

BRNEERRETHE
BRI R AEELCOSE %E&*B 2 quFZﬁ?T' )SZ/

HE-_ZTANF+-_A=+—HLFE &&
B (L0F 3T EL) %
AERBEAEMRABBRTIHEERA
(Hﬁﬂlmﬂanw&ﬁ%;ﬁa (Bp: :%if:n
F-—A+AB)HEFEEZ ATFEREER
& B 51T (5 (B £9668,000,00058 7T °

AEBELEERABIREREN G TFE
Z FIERA] 2 P & HA B 5K - IO LCOoSE R X 75
RERERR BEBEBRBE_ZTTNF+_H
St BUEFREEREZEURE ZATEL#E-

EREXEEERLA
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17.

18.

Karce International Holdings Company Limited

INTANGIBLE ASSET (continued)

As set out in note 3, the Company entered into the
Disposal Agreement with an independent third party
in January 2011 pursuant to which the Group would
dispose of the entire interest in Sourcestar and the Pacific
Choice Group and a non-refundable deposit amounting
HK$50,000,000 has been received in January 2011.
The directors determined that since the principal asset
of the Pacific Choice Group was the patents used in the
manufacturing of LCoS television and related components,
the non-refundable deposit serves as a clear evidence of
an increase in net realisable value of the Group’s intangible
asset and the impairment loss recognised during the year
ended 31 December 2009 was reversed by the amount
of HK$50,000,000. In the opinion of the directors, the
carrying amount of the intangible asset would be recovered
principally through the proposed disposal as set out in
note 3.

As set out in note 3, the proposed disposal of Sourcestar
was unable to complete on or before the long stop date on
30 June 2011 and the Disposal Agreement has therefore
lapsed on the same date. As such, the directors consider
that the carrying amount of the intangible asset was fully
impaired during the year ended 31 December 2011.

17.

BEEE &)

UM ESHE R ——F— AAEEE
—BBUFE=FFMMEEHE B AE
#% 1 £ Sourcestar & PacificChoices & 2
2HERX TN _E——F—AC KB AH
50,000,000 T2 N TREELE S ESMHEE
i M Pacific Choicek Bz X B EEAEE
LCoSER KA@M ER2ER T T
RERSAAEBEEREE 2 &1 FEE N
ZHREZEE mMEaEE2 _TTZAF+_A=1+—
HIEFEZEBRREBEEMBEAEHESHE
50,000,000 T E -EER A BREEZ
FHESEZEBEZEDNE (WHE3HE) I
[E]o

AN B EESFTE - &% & Sourcestarsk fE R f&x
BEHIEE T ——FNA=FTHKZAT
B REEHHEELERR B AR Al &
ERE BEREECREERBE-Z—F
+ A=+ —HLAFE2ERAE-

GOODWILL 18. B &
HK$’000
T T
CARRYING AMOUNT BRmEE
At 1 January 2010 and RZZE—ZFTF—A—HURZZE—ZFK

31 December 2010 and 2011

—F——%+-_HF=+—8H -
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ-Z——F+_-A=+—HLIEE

18.

19.

GOODWILL (continued)

The entire balance of goodwill of the Group was arising
on acquisition of the LCoS television business through
acquisition of the Pacific Choice Group during the year
ended 31 December 2009 as set out in note 3. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill and intangible
asset of the Group as set out in note 17 are allocated to
the cash-generating unit of LCoS television which was
expected to benefit from the above-mentioned goodwill
and intangible asset. The fair values of goodwill amounting
to HK$77,685,000 and intangible asset were valued by B.1.
Appraisal at the date of acquisition of the relevant business
and have been fully impaired during the year ended
31 December 2009.

18.

BE e

M FASFTE 2 —TTAF+_A=+—
HIEFE AEEREz2REFERER
1l 88 Pacific Choiceft & i U B8 L. CoSE 17 2 75
EX-BABENRAME AEE2HERER
BE (W17 E) e BEETEA A Ll
BNEREESBZILCOSERZBLELAE
fiL - BE 77,685,000 T2 B RAFERER
BEAFEAERBTHERIEEEREES B HE
TEEYEREE - TETAE+_A=1+—H
I FERZERE -

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE 19. AItHERE
INVESTMENTS
Amounts comprised: TREBRE
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
PRC Subsidiary (note i) R B A R (FIaE) = -
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, R&B Mz #EmEs 2T E
at fair value (note ii) (P i) 5,220 =
5,220 -
Notes: B 5T
)  As set out in note 3, the Group lost the control over 0] SANM FESATEL  ANEBE A ERFBKE A A

the PRC Subsidiary and the PRC Subsidiary had been
deconsolidated from the consolidated financial statements
of the Company on 1 December 2009. The PRC Subsidiary
has therefore been recognised by the Company as an
available-for-sale investment since then.

(i) The fair value is based on the quoted prices of the respective
securities in active markets for identical assets.

ZEHREMPENBARER 2T AF+ =
A—BBARRZEAMBREANBUALZA A
BR o Eitt - AR E LR AU E AR ERRR
AfHERE -

(i) AFEDBRBEIRESFNERTSERAEH

PBEZ REFTHESH

—ER-——FFH EREXEEERLA
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21.

20. INVENTORIES 20. 7€
2011 2010
= —B-2fF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FE T FET
Finished goods X am 937 _
TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. EZ R FIE

Karce International Holdings Company Limited

The Group generally allows credit periods of 30 to 90
days to its trade customers. An aged analysis of trade
receivables presented based on the invoice date at the end
of the reporting period is as follows:

REBE—RieTHESHEPFHI0EW0HZIE
ER-RHmEHR BEFRUFAZEZAH
ETZREDITAT

2011 2010
———% —z-2F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHETT

0 - 60 days 0%60H 927 4,883
61 — 90 days 61Z90H _ 1,042
927 5,925

The Group closely monitors the granting of credit and
periodically reviews the recoverability of each trade debt.
None of the trade receivables that are neither past due
nor impaired has any default payment history. Before
accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed
periodically.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance as at
31 December 2010 are debtors with an aggregate carrying
amount of HK$1,042,000 which were past due for which
the Group has not provided for impairment loss. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
The average age of these receivables is approximately 90
days.

Annual Report 2011
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #EZ-Z——&+-A=+—HI&EE

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continueq) 21.

Aging of trade receivables, based on the payment due
date, which are past due but not impaired is as follows:

EZERFIE &)

B8 1B I ERE 2 8 5 R WK RIZ B B 3R
BZREBEDHTAT

2011 2010

=Y B —z-=z4

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET THET

0 - 30 days 0£30H - 1,042

Movement in the provision for impairment loss recognised in
respect of trade receivables is as follows:

ZoRWHIBZERABEEEZEZS N
T

2011 2010

—E——F T —EF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTET AT

Balance at 1 January R—HA—Bz#&F 2,875 1,288
Impairment loss recognised FAEBRREEE

during the year 321 2,030

Amounts written off as uncollectible N BRI  [a] 7 86 2 & 58 (167) (442)

Reversal of impairment losses BB B 18 7 B (2,837) )

Balance at 31 December RTZA=+—B2&RF 192 2,875

The entire balance of the above allowance for doubtful
debts as at 31 December 2011 and 2010 were individually
impaired trade receivables as the management considered
such balances as not recoverable. The Group did not
hold any collateral over these balances. During the year,
allowance for doubtful debts with an aggregate amount
of HK$2,837,000 was reversed as evidenced by the
settlements of the relevant trade receivable balances.

HREBERAN IR -_E——FER-_FT—F
F+Z A=+t —HZREERRH 2 2BEFT
Ak E - BB BEFAEREREE S - UK
Ho AEBWERZEATHA EAEHRR R
AEE KEEHMEZRERINGKIBLETER
485 %8 52,837,000/8 70 2 RIZREED B[O -

—ER-——FFH EREXEEERLA

110



111

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #EZ-Z——F+-A=+—HI&E

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continueq)

The Group’s trade receivables that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the
relevant group entities are set out below:

21. EFEWRFEIE (%)

UREEEER 2 ER N2 BERGEZ
AEHEE 5 RBFAHIIOT

2011 2010

—E——F —E-TF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FAT

United States dollars (“USD”) E7T (%)) = 2,444

22. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances comprise short-term bank deposits with
original maturity less than three months carry interest
at 0.01% (2010: 0.01%) per annum. The Group’s bank
balances that are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set

22 RITEERRE

BITEFEERIPELR=1EA 2 EHRTT
TR IREMEK001% (ZE—ZTF:0.01%)
TR -UEEEEER 2N EE I EE
STEZAEERTABIINMOT

out below:
2011 2010
—E——F —E-ZTF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T
USD ETT 2 278

23. TRADE PAYABLES

23. EZ ETFIE

2011 2010

—B——fF —T-TF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET BT

Trade payables EE ) INE S5 - 1,196

Karce International Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2011
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ-Z——F+_-A=+—HLIEE

23.

24.

TRADE PAYABLES (continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables
presented based on invoice date at the end of the
reporting period.

23. EZEMNR

RIH ()

RBER - EHEMN K
Rk DTN T -

RREZHHZES 2

2011 2010

—g——f% —z-z4

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FATT

0 - 60 days 0£60H - 1,192
61 — 90 days 61290H - 4
- 1,196

The average credit period on purchase is 60 days. The
Group has financial risk management policies in place
to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit
timeframe.

PROMISSORY NOTES

As set out in note 3, on 15 January 2009, the Group
issued promissory notes of HK$375,000,000 at zero
coupon rate as part of the consideration for acquiring
the entire interest in Pacific Choice Group. The effective
interest rate was 16% at the date of issue.

On 16 February 2009, the Group and the bearer of the
promissory notes agreed that upon an early repayment
of HK$250,000,000, 10% of the principal amount of the
promissory notes (i.e. HK$37,500,000) would be cancelled
in favour to the Group. The repayment was made on
19 February 2009.

On 26 April 2010, the Group and the bearer of the
promissory notes agreed to extend the maturity date of
the remaining promissory notes with a principal amount
of HK$87,500,000 from 14 January 2011 to 14 January
2012. A gain on extension of maturity of promissory notes
of approximately HK$11,908,000 is recognised in profit or
loss during the year ended 31 December 2010.

R 2 FHEEH /60K - AEBEC HIFT 7%
R EREBE  NERAARNFKBRANEER
%W%“°

24, AN EE

MK A R_ZETZAF—A+AHABA A
SEZRTEL 1§§17375,ooo,ooo,%7n27¥m+
& - A Pacific Choicefs B 2 2 #f#E 2 o 1
BITAHZEBRNES16% °

%

—ETNF_ATNB AEEREEZE
FZEABRE ' WHIERFEi8250,000,000/%5
To Bl H BB AR £ % 210% (B)137,500,000
BIL) BHEHE BASEMB EEERE
ThE-_A+NLB#ET-

RZZE—ZFFEA—_+ B AEEREEE
BB ABRE A EE 587,500,000 T2
BTIARERIHER -"E——F— A +WMA
ERE-_ZE—-—F—A+WMA-H#E=Z—F
F+-A=+—HLFE ERAHLZERH
B 2 Y25 #911,908,0005 7T R 1B 25 A FE R °

—ER-——FFH EREXEEERLA
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24. PROMISSORY NOTES (continuea) 24 AR EE (#)
The promissory notes matured subsequent to the end EAEBEERREHAREI B -BHEARRER
of the reporting period. Up to the date of this report, no H ZEZBR 2 IEMEELER-

amount of the notes has been settled.

The movements of the carrying amount of the promissory EH BB ZREMAEZEHWNT
notes are as follows:

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TAIT
Balance at 1 January R—RA—Bz#&xF 74,964 75,031
Extension of maturity (note) EREEAB (M) - (11,908)
Interest charged (note 9) HBR 2 F 8 (KEE9) 12,072 11,841
Balance at 31 December R+t A=+—B2&F 87,036 74,964
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HMERZIFTOT :
Current liabilities mBAE 87,036 -
Non-current liabilities EREEE - 74,964
87,036 74,964
Note: Gain on extension of maturity of the promissory notes Wit: ERNEBE-Z—ZF+_A=+—HILEE
during the year ended 31 December 2010 was derived from W2 #H R EH B ek ) B R A O RN E
the change in carrying amount of the promissory notes at KA EREESBMES ARG HiRME
the date of extension, calculated by computing the present BEARRBA SR HEFRRERFEE -

value of estimated future cash flows using the original
effective interest rate.
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25. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 25. AR ES

Zero-coupon Tranche 1 Bonds due 2014

As set out in note 3, on 15 January 2009, the Company
issued the Tranche 1 Bonds due on 14 January 2014
with a principal amount of HK$300,000,000 at zero
coupon rate as part of the consideration for acquisition
of the Pacific Choice Group. The Tranche 1 Bonds are
convertible into fully paid ordinary shares at a conversion
price of HK$0.4 per share, subject to anti-dilutive
adjustments. Upon full conversion a total of 750,000,000
new ordinary shares, as at 31 December 2010 and 2011,
would be issued by the Company. The Company shall
redeem any convertible bonds which remain outstanding
on the maturity date at its principal amount.

None of the Tranche 1 Bonds was converted from the date
of issue to the end of the reporting period.

The convertible bonds contain liability and equity
components. The equity component is presented under the
equity heading of “convertible bonds reserve”.

The fair value of the liability component of the convertible
bonds at the issue date was valued by an independent
valuer determined based on the present value of the
estimated future cash outflows discounted at the prevailing
market rate for an equivalent non-convertible loan. The
effective interest rate of the liability component is 14% per
annum.

The movements of the carrying amount of the liability
component of the convertible bonds for the year are set
out below:

R-CE—NFIHz2E—HEEEE
P

M FESFTE R_ZETNFE—A+HA  &AQ
AIBTR-_E—NF—A+HBAHBASE
300,000,000/ 7T 2 8 —#L = EEH1E R WE
Pacific Choice 5B 2 SHR(E - F—H#EHIZ
B EEFIR0.4E T (AT REEFE) Eia
BARNBZBRERAR R_E—ZFLK_F
——F+_A=+—H RBEHEHEBRE AR
A8 2174 $£750,000,0000% 37 3@ M © A A
BIEEASREERIR BB M ARTTE Z E R A
BRRES -

M%7 A RS HRR 3 — LA
w3 o

AMEESEEABERERER D - D A
BEENZ [ARRESMFEE] 25

ARMBREFAEERNNETEHZAFERS
BB KR R % 3 T AR B IR R 1T T 45 F
KPP ZAEFTRRRERLZREMEE - &
BN ZERENESEF14% -

AMBEFAEERN CEERERANFREAZE
BEIMT

2011 2010

—E——F —E-TF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FABIT

Balance at 1 January R—RA—Bz&F 201,389 176,785

Interest charge (note 9) R 2 A2 (K3E9) 28,194 24,604

Balance at 31 December RTZA=+—Bz2&F 229,583 201,389
- —FEH SEAREEEMERAD {14
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26. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Karce International Holdings Company Limited

The major deferred tax liabilities recognised by the Group
and movements thereon during the current and prior years

are as follows:

26. EEHERR

AEERRZEIBREERBRBERERAFE
FBEFERAZESHFHOT:

Promissory Convertible
notes bonds Total
AR EE MERES o
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FET T
At 1 January 2010 R_ZE—ZF—A—H 2,058 20,330 22,388
Charge (credit) to profit or loss Mk (R A) B
- Recognised in relation to extension - BERA N ZEEH A
of maturity of the promissory i 7R
notes 1,964 - 1,964
- Release upon amortisation of - IR IR B IR A R
promissory notes and convertible AL R R AR
bonds under effective interest EHEEE
method (1,954) (4,059) (6,013)
10 (4,059) (4,049)
At 31 December 2010 R-ZZB-ZF+_-_A=+—H 2,068 16,271 18,339
Credit to profit or loss FTAER
- Release upon amortisation of - RIRBREBR A XA
promissory notes and convertible EHEERATRR
bonds under effective interest BEHEEE
method (1,092) (4,652) (6,644)
At 31 December 2011 R=Z——f+=HA=t—H 76 11,619 11,695

As at 31 December 2011, the Group has, subject to
the consent of the tax authority, unused tax losses of
approximately HK$8,455,000 (2010: HK$9,298,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised due to the unpredictability of

future profit streams. The losses may be carried forward i o

indefinitely.
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27. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY 27. KA R KA

28.

Number of
shares Nominal value
B & B BRHE{E
'000 HK$’000
T THR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FREME0IB I 2 TR
Authorised: AT
At 1 January 2010, R—_ZE—ZFF—H—H"
31 December 2010 and 2011 T EER-T——F
+=—B=+—-8 20,000,000 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRHR:
At 1 January 2010, RZZE—ZFTF—H—-A8"
31 December 2010 and 2011 —EFFER=FF
+=-B=+—8 702,356 70,236
SHARE OPTION SCHEME 28. RERESTE

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
was adopted on 29 May 2002 under which the Board of
the Directors may grant options to eligible participants,
including employees and directors of the Company and
any of its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares of the
Company. The Scheme is valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing from the adoption date after which
no further options may be issued.

The number of shares, which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted under the Scheme and
other schemes adopted by the Group, is not permitted
to exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any point in time. The total number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted under the Scheme and
other schemes adopted by the Group in aggregate is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue at the adoption date. The total number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted to any individual is
not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any 12-month period.

RRARRZZZFHEA TN BERMERER
Pergrt &l ([&%aT8l]) Bt EFERMAE
RB2EE (BRARABREETAHNBATZE
BNEF)REAIBEARTRN < RRERE -
Zat 8RR A B Rt FERAR BRK
NEBHITEARERE-

TTERBEZ S RARERM 2 bt 8K H
ZFAEARITERBREM A LT 2D
2R TEEBEAREAXRDETRN
30% ° RIF& AT & R AKBRM 2 KA+ E 7]
RERHZBBEREZERARNDERTFHEER
MBEHARBERITRNZ10% - RER+=
&l A8 AJERE M ALRLZ REREZ
EREBRONABTEBREARAEHITRMN
1% °

—ER-——FFH EREXEEERLA
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28.

29.

Karce International Holdings Company Limited

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Consideration of HK$1 is payable by the grantee on the
acceptance of option granted. Option may be exercised
from the date of acceptance of the offer of such option to
the earlier of the date on which such option lapses and 10
years from the offer date of that option. The exercise price
is determined by the directors of the Company, and will not
be less than the higher of the closing prices of the shares
on the Stock Exchange on the date of the grant of the
options, the average of the closing prices of the shares for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the
grant of the options and the nominal value of the shares.

No share options have been granted under the Scheme
since its adoption.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group participates in both a defined contribution
scheme which is registered under the Occupational
Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”)
and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) established under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the schemes
are held separately from those of the Group, in funds under
the control of trustees. Employees who were members of
the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of the MPF
Scheme were offered a choice of staying within the ORSO
Scheme or switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas all new
employees joining the Group on or after 1 December 2000
are required to join the MPF Scheme.

The retirement benefits scheme contributions charged
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
represent contributions payable to the schemes by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes. Where
there are employees who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to
vesting fully in the contributions, the amounts of the forfeited
contributions will be used to reduce future contributions
payable by the Group.
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7%&}\&%5%&2;: B R B R S (BB
AR AEARSREREZZA N
?\;E%Zjﬁﬁﬂx%%xﬁ(ﬁﬂ;ﬁ& REERERE B
ERtEER (UAREERE) LHRFITE1T
EEHARARESET WK ERBERE
B AMRORBR 2 BT E ZRRBER
R LA EERS 8RO RBR A Z ¥
WimEXRRhEEZRSE -

B 2R AR AT I BN A SR B EAR IR R4 5T 813X
A e 32 8 AR -

RAKE R E

765 8] [R5 2 BRAR B BB SR KT B R B &
ERHEREE (BRG] RN =
BRETZ ﬂixﬁlZ%ﬁ%UlEﬁhiﬂﬂJ‘“iZ
smEEATEEE 8 ([RESFE]) - % EFE
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29.

30.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

(continued)

During the year, the retirement benefits scheme
contributions are approximately HK$48,000 (2010:
HK$36,000). The Group did not have any forfeited
contributions available to offset future employers’
contributions to the ORSO Scheme.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As set out in the announcement of the Company dated 17
January 2011, on 22 September 2010, the Group entered
into a conditional sale and purchase agreement with an
independent third party pursuant to which the Group
would acquire certain chromium mines in the Republic
of Madagascar by the issue of convertible bonds in a
maximum aggregate consideration of US$3,520,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$27,280,000,000) by the
Company. The acquisition was subject to the approvals by
the Stock Exchange and shareholders of the Company.

On 28 December 2011, the Group entered into termination
agreements with the vendor pursuant to which the parties
thereto agreed to terminate all transactions contemplated
under the above conditional sale and purchase agreement,
which shall cease to have any force or effect after the
signing of the termination agreements.

29.

30.

BIABFREE 2

RER - BRE MG E 2 H 34 /48,0008 7T
—ZF—FF:36,000/87T) o A K H I &I
EOR MR AT IR S B SR KT Bl 2 R RB =

PR o

BEAEE

BMARABBPEAE-—_T——F—A+LHZA
e R_E—ZEFNLA=-_+=-H A5&H
H—R2BYE=ARI Y —DEGEGEE H
Bl AEEBBBRARRBRITRSEHEAE
3,520,000,000% 7t ( #HE M %J27,280,000,000
BT Z AR E S W B E T AR R 2
AT IRTE o WA B P AR A B R SRL
% HA{EE -

RZE——F+ZA=+/\B AEEHEH
RN IR B ATRNESRERLE LA
REEBERBRATRET AR S &
RBEER LR RSB RERR I RER -

—ER-——FFH EREXEEERLA
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31. INFORMATION OF THE STATEMENT  31.

OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Information of the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period:

RARZHBRRRER

RRARRBERRZFHERRKER

2011 2010

—2——% e

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHET T T

Investment in subsidiaries KRB RRZ&KE 77 77
Amounts due from subsidiaries =N B - 9,950
Other assets Hih & E 20,241 11,893
20,318 21,920

Total Liabilities BwaeE (408,471) (394,089)
(388,153) (872,169)

Share capital f& 7 70,236 70,236
Reserves bt (458,389) (442,405)
(388,153) (872,169)

Karce International Holdings Company Limited

Annual Report 2011
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31. INFORMATION OF THE STATEMENT 31. XA R ZHBRRARER (@)
OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Reserves

R

HK$’000

TAIT

At 1 January 2010 RZE—ZTF—H—H (416,438)

Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year N4 JE 518 K & M

Fx &5 (25,967)

At 31 December 2010 RZT—ZF+_H=+—H (442,405)

Loss for the year FAEE (15,970)
Decrease in fair value of available-for-sale EEREaBERZAIHEEREATE

investments recognised directly in equity N (14)

At 31 December 2011 RZE—F+=H=+—H (458,389)
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32. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

2. EALHE

() Particulars of amount due to a related (i) BN—BBEALZREFE
party
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T 7T
A shareholder, who has AR —MNEBERFENN
significant influence, of the &$ SRAERBAE
Company, included in non- (H=E)
current liabilities (note) 1,653 7,153
Note: The amount is unsecured, interest free and has BT : Za 8 A - %8 kI E E 8K
no fixed terms of repayment. The shareholder has o RRERZE TSR MEBREFT =
agreed not to demand for repayment for twelve & A EREERE - At - ZRIBEHERIER
months from the end of the reporting period. g o
Accordingly, the amount is classified as non-current.
(i) Key management compensation (i) ETEEE A B 5 M

The remuneration of the key management of the
Group during the year was as follows:

FAREETEZEEBASHMAT :

2011 2010

—®——% —B-2fF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET AT

Short-term benefits EHARA 1,185 836
Retirement benefits scheme RORGE FIET B 5K

contributions 25 17

1,210 853

The remuneration of directors and other members
of key management is determined by the board
of directors having regard to the performance of
individual and market trends.
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33. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33. EXEEE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt and
amount due to a shareholder, which includes the promissory
notes and convertible bonds disclosed in notes 24 and
25 respectively, and equity attributable to equity holders of
the Company, comprising issued share capital and various
reserves less accumulated losses.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues or share buy-
backs, as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption
of existing debt.

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(@) Categories of financial instruments

A BE B E (S REAT BT EBHAAR
AR (R B B RS AL B B IS B
B SR A A B R - Ao R RS R
RAERHTE -

AEBEZEARBRERE RENBRRRIEA
(B IR M 724 26 % B8 2 & X 4% Al
BRES) RARAEDE A ARGER (8
BREBRTERARSEMFERRFER) -

ARRESTEHEMEARE - (FRRRERM
M—n EFEREZTHENGRNEARNX
ARRE AEESZEEZHEBEREEK
RS~ BT ¥ Al A 10 B [0 JA R 38 (B 7 =k
BEBEEER NFEHEBERRE-

4. 2@ ITH

(a) eI AEEHR

2011 2010
—g-——% —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THAR THT
Financial assets ERMEE
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 5,220 =
Loans and receivables (including SN EWFIE (BHERIRE LR
cash and cash equivalents) *EEER) 20,220 21,781
Financial liabilities Ea-h=Ri
At amortised cost LABESHA NETE 320,287 284,702
—E——FFR RERBEEEFRAA
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continueq)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investments, trade receivables,
bank balances and cash, trade and other payables,
amount due to a shareholder, convertible bonds
and promissory notes. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risks (currency risk and equity price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
There has been no change to the policies on how to
mitigate these risks.

Market risk

(i) Currency risk
The Group operates in Hong Kong with most of
the transactions are denominated and settled in
Hong Kong dollars or United States dollars.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign

4. ¢RI A%

(b)

MERREEEERBE

AEBCZFESRMIABBEIHEER
B EIRERE ROEFEAES &
5 R EM N FRIR - BN — B RR A
ABMBEFREALRE BEZSERT
AZAHBERERENERE - RZF SR
TEARBZRAR @%m%ﬂ 2 (B
aMREERRR) EERRERBE
/i\J—WA TY%&E‘JQDHBHEEEQQHKZBZ
CEEEBEEREEZFER  AERK
&Hj‘&ﬁ)&ﬁﬂhiHXﬂ Rk ﬁf@ﬁﬂﬁﬁ%
BZERBRZBIRBEFLES -

o

() E%ER
AEERBEALEER TBRH
BT ETIERES -

R|EBR AEBAINETIRZ

currency denominated monetary assets at the EMEECREMERNT
end of the reporting period are as follows:
Assets
BE
2011 2010
—E——F —ET-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET T
UsD ETT 2 2,722
Sensitivity analysis BRE DT

No sensitivity analysis has been presented as
the directors consider that the Group’s exposure
to USD is insignificant on the grounds that Hong
Kong dollars is pegged to USD.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continueq)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in listed equity
securities that accounted for as available-for-
sale investments of the Group. The Group’s
equity price risk is mainly concentrated on equity
instruments operating in banking industry sector
in Hong Kong and PRC quoted in the Stock
Exchange.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risks at the reporting date. If the prices of
the respective equity securities had been 10%
higher/lower, investment revaluation reserve
of the Group as at 31 December 2011 would
increase/decrease by HK$522,000 as a result
of the changes in fair value of the listed equity
available-for-sale investments held by the Group.

No sensitivity analysis has been presented for
the year ended 31 December 2010 as the
Group held no listed equity available-for-sale
investments.

34. 2T H %)

b) BERREEEEREEK &)

mEE A (%)

(i)

Y

B% 18 =B

REEFBEN ETRABS 2KE

(ARSI AAREE 2 AHEEERE)

mASRERR - ANEB 2 KRER
EERRERBRFRHZIRTT

XD BBEEVERIMHREZ KA

THo

BURE DT

LA 8 E o 4T ThAR IR A 3k 25 B B
EZ7BRERRMETE -WEBE 2
fE ARFEHER LA TFE10% @ A&
SRR -_ZFT——F+=-_A=+—H
ZHREBEEHFEBRAANEBEMER
ZAHHEREZ FMRARFE
54 &) 3% hn Rk 4>522,000/8 IT

WEZ2IHE_ZT—ZTF+ A
St HALFEZH#HEESHT R
AAAEEYERFAHEERE
Z EmRRA e

EREXEEERLA
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continueq)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

Karce International Holdings Company Limited

and policies (continued)
Credit risk

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties arising from the carrying amount
of the respective recognised financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade and
other debt at each end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the management
of the Company consider that the Group’s crediit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as
approximately 31% (2010: 20%) and approximately
78% (2010: 79%) of the total trade receivables
was due from the Group’s largest customer and
the five largest customers respectively, all of which
are engaged in the business of conductive silicon
rubber keypads. The concentration of credit risk by
geographical location is mainly in Hong Kong (2010:
the PRC), which accounted for 100% (2010: 78%) of
the total trade receivable at the end of the reporting
period in the said jurisdiction. The directors have
assessed the credit quality of these debtors and have
continuously assessed the recoverability of such
amounts. For both years, the Company considers
the five largest customers have good repayment
history and credit quality with reference to the track
records of these customers. The directors consider
these debtors are of good credit quality based on
the regular assessments of such customers and the
absence of any default record in the past.

Annual Report 2011
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continueq) 34. T H (@)

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) HEEREEBZEREEEK (&)

and policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

In addition, the Group has concentration of credit risk
on liquid funds which are deposited with several banks
with good reputation. Other than the above, the Group
does not have any other significant concentration of
credit risk.

Liquidity risk

The Group exposed to significant liquidity risk at the
end of the reporting period. The net liabilities of the
Group as at 31 December 2011 was approximately
HK$306,857,000 (2010: HK$231,420,000). In view
of this, the directors of the Company has given careful
consideration to the future liquidity of the Group and
have been taking steps to improve the liquidity of the
Group and details of which are set out in note 2.

The following table details the Group’s contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities based on the agreed
repayment terms. The tables for non-derivative
financial liabilities have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required
to pay.

EERE (&)

i AEB 2 RBEREERRSEST

HZEBTFRRERRHFZERRITA

BR EXCPRAtE SN - AR B B AT E
ARZEERBRSES -

AEBRBREHAAHEAZ RBE LR
o AEEBR-_E—F+_-_A=+—H
2 B (&R 5 4 A306,857,000/8 7T (= F
— L £ : 231,420,00058 7T ) ° A ER I

ARABEBHAEEBZ KRR REBESE
HEEES  WRIIEEREAERZR
BED FRENHE2

TRLBREHEERGRTEAEE S
BMAEEZANZBBFHE -FTESR
BEME  ZRDREBEAEERERA
FEARFAHPZERABIARARS

ik ok
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continueq)

4. €T A (»)

(b) Financial risk management objectives b) BHEREEEEZERBER (&)
and policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) HEHELEE ()
Liquidity and interest risk table REBESRAERREE
Weighted
average Total Carrying
effective Less than Over undiscounted amount at
interest rate 1 month 1 year cash flows 31 December
Rt+=A
MELH KRR Er=E
- FilkS DIM{ER BBIE  BER4E FHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% FAT T TET TAT
2011 —E—-%
Non-derivative financial ETELRER
liabilities
Other payables Hib R E - 2,015 - 2,015 2,015
Amount due to a shareholder R —2RRFA - - 1,653 1,653 1,653
Convertible bonds - liability akES - 8EHH
component (note) (FizE) 14 - 300,000 300,000 229,583
Promissory notes S 16 87,500 - 87,500 87,036
89,515 301,653 391,168 320,287
2010 —2-3F
Non-derivative financial liabiities ~ FEfTA L RE &
Trade payables B HRNTE - 1,196 - 1,196 1,196
Amount due to a shareholder E—aRERA = = 7,153 7,153 7,153
Convertiole bonds - liability kER - 8EH0
component (note) (BzE) 14 = 300,000 300,000 201,389
Promissory notes AR EE 16 - 87,500 87,500 74,964
1,196 394,653 395,849 284,702

Note: This is categorised based on contractual term of

redemption at maturity on the assumption that there

are no redemption or conversion of the convertible

bonds.

Karce International Holdings Company Limited
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continueq)

(€

Fair values of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

° the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded in active liquid markets are determined
with reference to quoted market bid prices; and

° the fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis.

Fair value measurements recognised
in the consolidated statement of
financial position

HKFRS 7 requires an entity to classify fair value
measurements using a fair value hierarchy that
reflects the significance of the inputs used in making
the measurements. The fair value hierarchy should
have the following levels:

(@  quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1);

(b)  inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices) (Level 2); and

(¢) inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable inputs)
(Level 3).

Financial instruments that are measured subsequently
to initial recognition at fair value, represent the
Group’s investments in listed securities in Hong Kong
accounted for as available-for-sale investments,
amounted to HK$5,220,000 (2010: nil) as set out in
note 19, is based on Level 1 measurement.
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35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 35. B A B 1E

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at RZTE——FR_ZF—ZEF+-_A=+—8"
31 December 2011 and 2010 are as follows: RARZHWEB AR ﬁlillﬂ—l—

Nominal value of

Place of issued and fully
incorporation or paid ordinary
registration/ share capital/ Attributable equity interests
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital by the Company Principal activities
BRIRAR
Bl ZERRAE/ KAREGZ
WEAR AR B/ EEnY EfEAEE BRAER TEEH
Directly Indirectly
HE B
2011 2010 2011 2010
Z§--% “3-TF “§--f “F-%3%
% % % %

Champion Keypad Manufacturing Hong Kong HK$1,000 - - 100 100 Trading in conductive silicon
Limited Ordinary shares rubber products
SRRREEERAR B LiliR1,00087T ESBELRER
Gold Concept Limited British Virgin US§1 100 100 - - Management service

[slands Ordinary shares
EERTES LaRiEn ERRG
Gold Pioneer Enterprises British Virgin US$1 - - 100 100 Inactive
Limited Islands Ordinary shares
EBRTES LaRIET Lm%h
Great Perfect Investments British Virgin US§$1 100 100 - - Management service
Limited Islands Ordinary shares
AERLES LARIET EBRH%
Hong Shing Industrial Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - = 100 100 Trading in conductive silicon
Ordinary shares rubber products
RRBXARAA B Lakw000062  EfE BEEBBER
Long Trinity Limited British Virgin US$1 100 100 - - Inactive
Islands Ordinary shares
EBRTES LaRIET Lm%h
Max Dynasty Limited British Virgin US$1 100 100 - - Investment holding
Islands Ordinary shares
AERLES LARIET REER
Million Well Creation Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - = 100 100 Management service
Ordinary shares
BEEIRERAR B LaRiER ERRG
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35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

F+ZA=+-RALEERE

35. B A TS %)

(continued)
Nominal value of
Place of issued and fully
incorporation or paid ordinary
registration/ share capital/ Attributable equity interests
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital by the Company Principal activities
BRIRAR
Bl LERRAE/ KAREGZ
WEARER B/ EEnY EfEAEE BRAER TEEH
Directly Indirectly
¢4 GF:
2011 2010 2011 2010
ZB--f “T-TF “%--f “2-TF
% % % %
On Shing Holdings Company British Virgin US$10,000 - = 100 100 Investment holding
Limited Islands Ordinary shares
ZEERERAT EBRAES EiRA%10,000% T REER
Pacific Choice Holdings Limited British Virgin US$10,000 - - 100 100 Investment holding
Islands Ordinary shares
EBRAES E@R10,000% T REER
Redditch Enterprises Limited British Virgin US$10,001 100 100 - - Investment holding
Islands Ordinary shares
AERAES EBER10001ET REZR
Sheenway Limited British Virgin US$1 - - 100 100 Holdings of patents
Islands Ordinary shares
HRBRAA EBRAES LARIET FrE &
Sourcestar Profits Limited British Virgin US§1 100 100 - - Investment holding
Islands Ordinary shares
EBRAES LakiER REER
Starwick Development Limited British Virgin US$1 - - 100 100 Investment holding
Islands Ordinary shares
EBRAES EaRiER REER
—E-——FFH EREXSEFRAT
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Financial Summary

B TE AR

RESULTS E S|

For the year ended 31 December
BEt-A=1t—-HLEE
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
—ZZ+E —ZTEERNE ZZTTNF —Z-TF —B——-F
HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THBT TET THET THET FET

Revenue (including continuing and Mz (BHEFE R R

discontinued operations) I 2T 735,114 645,083 134,272 26,524 5,025
Profit (loss) before taxation BRI ADRF (B5E) (62,826) (163,299) (687,100) 20,380 (82,067)
Income tax (expense) credit FEH (RX)#e (1,924) (6,429) 1,430 4,049 6,644

Profit (loss) for the year, attributable  REEARAFHEHE A

to owners of the Company FEE =R (E1E) (64,750) (169,728) (585,670) 24,429 (75,423)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
As at 31 December
Rt+t=-—RA=+-—H
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

“ETLE CTENE CTIAE SF-3E —®-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THT  THR  TeR  Tex  Tan

Total assets BEE 669,470 515,897 41,042 72,217 26,867
Total liabilities BAEE (294,439) (262,627) (296,891) (303,637) (333,724)
375,031 253,270 (255,849) (231,420) (306,857)

Equity attributable to owners of VAN/NGIE 2N
the Company (L= 375,031 253,270 (255,849) (231,420) (306,857)
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